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Our Vision
To provide comprehensive banking solutions to our customers and establish fruitful relationships with them through a thorough 
understanding of their current needs and the fulfilment of such needs; and to anticipate and properly address their future needs.

Our Mission
   To enhance the image of the Arab Banking Corporation Group as one of the largest Arab international bank and to assume an 
effective role in the Jordanian market.
   To provide high quality banking services which fulfil the various needs of our customers. 
   To establish and manage strong business relationships with all economic sectors. 
   To motivate and enhance the effectiveness and the capacity of our human resources, and provide them with the means to increase 
their responsiveness to continuous professional development. 
   To utilize the vast international network of the Arab Banking Corporation Group to provide a larger array of banking services. 
   To accelerate the growth of the returns on shareholders’ equity. 

Our Values
   Complete appreciation of the customer. 
   Working as one team with high productivity. 
   Credibility and integrity. 
   Transparency and full exchange of information. 
   Compliance with the local and international banking standards. 
   Competency in procedures. 
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Ghazi Abdul-Jawad
Chairman of the Board

Letter from the Chairman of the Board

results to be mentioned later:
1) The conservative and prudent monetary policy, which the 

CBJ adopted throughout the past years to safeguard monetary 
stability and buttress the overall economy. The CBJ continued 
to implement its indirect control policy and the use of available 
monetary policy instruments. This enabled the CBJ to achieve 
the targeted monetary stability while maintaining balance in 
the interest rates structure, including the regulation of credit 
expansion, curbing the inflation rate, and building foreign currency 
reserves of over US$6 billion in 2006.

2) The fiscal policy, which is based on establishing additional 
basis for sustainable development, expansion of the available 
horizons for economic initiatives, accumulating and diversifying 
achievements, and meeting the demands of internal security and 
stability. This policy led to strengthening the positive interactions 
between the private and public sectors, as well as deepening the 
spirit of partnership between them, with the goal of increasing 
capital expenditures, enhancing investment flows, and decreasing 
the national debt, and continuing the government privatization 
policy.

This year’s economic growth came as a result of the steady 
growth of all the nation’s economic sectors, as well as the 
continuation of the positive influence of the large investment 
inflows in 2006, which reached approximately US$2.9 million. 
Moreover, there was an increase in the overall size of investment 
and an improvement in the rate of productivity by no less than 
3 percent. All these factors contributed to this growth and to the 
significant increase in foreign currency reserves, as well as to the 
decrease in the balance of payments deficit.

Supported by the above-indicated propitious economic 
developments, the Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) continued 
to achieve high growth rates in all of its operations. It also 
recorded higher growth rates than previously achieved in terms 
of profitability and shareholder equity, which reinforced its 
position and enabled it to preserve its exceptional performance 
in the banking sector, distinguishing it as a renowned house of 
banking expertise. 

These achievements were realized as a direct consequence 
of the enlightened policies that were decreed by the Board 
of Directors, the noteworthy effectiveness of its Executive 
Management, the fruitful cooperation between the Bank and its 
clients, the valiant efforts of its employees, and maximizing the 
benefits from its membership in the wide international presence 
of the mother company in Bahrain.

The Bank’s new organizational structure came as a concrete 
practical translation of the management’s efforts, which were 
aimed at achieving a number of strategic goals. The first goal 
was the reorganization of the managerial structure in a way that 
increases the Bank’s returns on different services. The second, 
raising the degree of efficiency of managing the available 
resources. The third, expanding the scope of services that are 

Dear Shareholders, 
On behalf of my colleagues on the Board of Directors of the 

Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan), it gives me great pleasure 
to present to you the Seventeenth Annual Report of the Arab 
Banking Corporation (Jordan). I expect that the Report will 
address your expectations, and answer your queries regarding 
the annual results, data and changes in the components of the 
general budget, income statement and cash flows, in addition to 
the Bank’s plan for 2007. 

Before I begin a presentation on all the above, kindly allow 
me to momentarily attend to the impressive economic results 
that emanated from the fiscal, monetary and investment policies 
that Jordan enjoyed in 2006. These policies underpin all activities 
including our banking activities and drive the growth and 
profitability factors that the Bank strives to achieve.

In fact, the Bank’s annual results for 2006 were entirely in 
line with Jordan’s economic indicators, which recorded, for 2006, 
another year of continuous and substantial growth throughout 
the years of the third millennium. It was these first-rate policies, 
which Jordan followed under the leadership of His Majesty King 
Abdullah II Special thanks are due to the prudent monetary policy 
of the Central Bank of Jordan (CBJ), which led to the strengthening 
of the banking system’s performance, enhanced its financial 
immunity, and raised its level of efficiency. These policies also 
helped to continue to build foreign currency reserves, lower 
public debt, and contain the inflation rate; and, consequently, the 
stability of the exchange rate of the Jordanian Dinar vis-à-vis the 
major currencies.

It is important to note that the Jordanian economy achieved 
a remarkable real GDP growth rate of 6 percent as a result of its 
state of optimism and initiative, stable legislative environment, 
and regional and international openness that is attractive to 
inward investment and the promise of even greater security and 
stability. This is in spite of some of the difficulties that Jordan 
faced, owing to external factors in 2006, such as the steep rise 
in the oil bill due to the increase of the international rates for oil, 
and the continued instability in neighbouring markets. 

Although the 2006 growth rate of 6 percent is lower than that 
of the 2005 growth rate of 7.5 percent, it is still in tandem with 
the averages achieved in the past few years and is higher than 
the levels recorded in most of the countries in the surrounding 
region. The 6 percent growth rate can be viewed as a conclusive 
and evident sign of not only the dynamic character of Jordan’s 
economy and its strong fundamentals. It is also indicative of the 
positive image of an attractive economy, where productivity is 
continuously improved; savings are on the rise; management of 
scarce resources is highly efficient; and the focus is on Jordan’s 
primary resource, human capital.

Among all the basic factors that amalgamated together to 
strengthen the positive image of Jordan, allow me to discourse on 
two important factors, which will also help explain the banking 
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Bank contracted a company specialized in the mystery shopper 
technique to gauge the quality of services of the Bank, as well 
as the competitive performance of its heads of departments and 
employees that are responsible for client services.

On the other hand, in mid-2006, the ABC (Jordan)’s financial 
banking services was set in motion for corporations, which led 
to increasing the volume of these services and the expansion of 
the Bank’s client base of companies. This new service led to a 
marked increase in the Net Operating Profits to approximately 
JD3.7 million, an increase of 163 percent.

The Bank was also abetted by its investment arm, the Arab 
Cooperation Company, which efficiently continued its activities 
in the Amman Stock Exchange as well as some other Arab 
and Foreign Markets. The Bank made profits amounting to 
approximately JD3.3 million in spite of a decline of 33 percent in 
the stock price index of the Amman Bourse, and the decrease in 
the trading volume by 16 percent, as well as the fall in trading 
volume indicators across the Arab markets.

Based on the importance of this investment arm, a new 
building was bought at a cost of JD2 million, to be set as the 
permanent headquarters for the Arab Cooperation Financial 
Investment Company. Mr. Khalid Zakariah was appointed as Chief 
Executive Officer of the company as of July 1, 2006.

These results helped ABC (Jordan) to continue to activate its 
plans to further develop its human resources and further qualify 
its cadres. This was accomplished through specialized training 
programs and quality seminars that underscored the various 
aspects of banking and its administration, and by attracting 
additional skills and expertise.

The Board of Directors is pleased to welcome Mr. Nour Nahawi 
a member of the board who was appointed Chief Executive Officer 
of ABC (Jordan) as of June 1, 2006. His appointment was based 
on the merits of his invaluable cumulative banking experience 
and proven astute leadership in the positions he held in various 
banking institutions and within the Arab Banking Corporation 
group..

In light of these results, the Board of Directors recommends 
that the General Committee distribute 25 percent of the capital 
as free stocks to the shareholders.

I would like to express my sincere thanks and gratitude to His 
Majesty King Abdullah II bin Al-Hussein for his incisive leadership 
and hard work and diligence to achieve greater progress for Jordan 
and all Jordanians. Our gratitude and appreciation also goes to 
Jordan’s enlightened government, the Central Bank of Jordan and 
its management, and the official public sector institutions. Their 
incessant  efforts have contributed significantly toward improving 
the performance of the economy, developing the banking system, 
and maintaining and buttressing confidence in the Jordanian Dinar 
and the investment climate in the Kingdom. 

What’s more, I would like to extend my sincere thanks to all 
those who work at the Bank for their individual and collective 
efforts, which played a major role in achieving our excellent 
results.

May the peace, mercy and blessings of Allah be upon you.

Ghazi Abdul-Jawad
Chairman of the Board

provided to the clients of the Bank. This was to be accomplished 
while setting rights and privileges, designating areas of 
specialization, clarifying work relationships to avoid overlaps, and 
allocating every banking activity an equal degree of importance.

The size of dealings in the Amman Stock Exchange, and, 
in turn, the Bank’s revenues from its investment arm and the 
Bank’s profits from stock trading had decreased. However, instead 
of suffering from a decrease in non-recurring profits, the Bank 
maintained its level of annual profits. 

As for fiscal returns, the accompanying data and information 
show that the Bank’s net profits reached approximately JD11 
million for 2006, thus increasing the shareholder’s stake of profits 
to approximately JD65.8 million. Furthermore, the Bank’s net 
assets increased from JD410.8 million in 2005 to approximately 
JD517.7 million in 2006, a growth of 26 percent. Moreover, the 
rate of return on assets and the rate of return on the shareholder’s 
stake increased to 2.4 percent and 19 percent, respectively.

Due to these amply gratifying and highly assuring results, ABC 
(Jordan) strengthened its capital base by increasing its reserves, 
capital and property rights, as well as the consolidation of its 
competitive position. The latter was consolidated in a way that 
gave the Bank the ability to meet the increasing needs and 
demands of its clients, continually build its technological base, 
and develop its human resources. 

The main budget items continued its balanced growth in 2006. 
On the assets side, credit facilities rose from JD206 million in 
2005 to approximately JD238 million in 2006, an increase of 15.5 
percent. Total deposits and credit increased from approximately 
JD244 million in 2005 to more than JD251 million in 2006. Although 
the growth rate for these deposits was around 3 percent, the 
non-interest bearing deposits increased by approximately 15.7 
percent, making them 19.5 percent of total deposits.

ABC (Jordan) continued to implement its strategic plan, which 
aims at improving asset quality by: offering new banking services 
to retail and corporate clients, including the financing of small 
individual projects; increasing external communication channels; 
developing electronic services; and expanding investment 
services. The retail credit portfolio reached approximately JD83 
million, thus comprising 35 percent of the Bank’s entire credit 
portfolio, and contributing approximately 29 percent of the Bank’s 
total revenues.

Within the framework of this strategic plan, ABC’s management, 
at the end of 2006, preceded with the implementation of the 
retail sector plan for the years 2007 to 2010. Furthermore, a plan 
for corporate credit facilitation, which began in 2006, was set for 
implementation in order to set the corporate sector on even more 
solid grounds.

In addition, an Online Trading System, developed by the Arab 
Cooperation Company, a wholly owned subsidiary of ABC (Jordan), 
was registered and presented to the Stock Exchange Commission 
and the Depository. The Bank also formed a committee of Member 
of the Board called the Risk Management Committee in order to 
set down a general framework for the risk strategy and related 
policies.

On the human resources level, a modern organizational 
structure was adopted, and job descriptions for all managerial 
and supervisory positions were produced. Furthermore, the 

Letter from the Chairman of the Board
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H.E. MR. SHAFIQ ZAWAIDEH
Member of the Board of Directors

Academic Achievements
   M.A. in Engineering, USA, 1965.
   B.A. in Civil Engineering, Egypt, 1960.
Professional Experience
   Chairman of the Board of Directors, Jordan 
Pipes Manufacturing Company
   Member of the Board of Directors, United 
Investors Company
   Member of the Board of Directors, Tameer
   Minister of Housing and Public Works, 1988-
1989
   General Manager, Public Housing Corporation, 
1984-1988.
   Member, National Consultative Council, 1978-
1979
   Public Contracting, 1968-1984.
   Engineer, Greater Amman Municipality, 1960-
1968
   Head, Heritage Association, Madaba.
   Participated in the establishment of various 
banks, and public shareholding, private and 
limited liability companies

DR. SALEH AL-HUMAIDAN
Deputy Chairman

Academic Achievements
   Ph.D. in Agricultural Economics, Oklahoma 
State University, USA.
Professional Experience
   General Manager, Arab Investment 
Corporation, Saudi Arabia.
   Chairman of the Board, Financial Investment 
Bank, Sudan.
   Member of the Board of Directors, Arab 
Banking Corporation (Bahrain).
   Member of the Board of Directors, Saudi 
International Petrochemicals Company, Saudi 
Arabia.
   Member of the Board of Directors, Saudi 
Equity Fund.
   Maintains extensive and diversified 
experience in the field of investment 
and economics as a result of working in 
the Ministry of Planning in Saudi Arabia, 
the Saudi Development Fund, the Arab 
Investment Corporation in Saudi Arabia, and 
his participation in numerous conferences and 
seminars concerning investment and capital 
development in Arab countries.

MR. GHAZI ABDUL-JAWAD
Chairman of the Board

Academic Achievements
   M.A. in International Relations, Fletcher 
School of Law and Diplomacy, Tufts University, 
Massachusetts, USA.
   B.A. in Political Science, Lewis and Clark 
College, Oregon, USA.
   Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Bankers, 
United Kingdom.
   Member of the International Finance Institute 
Task Force Committee, Washington, USA.
   Member of the Gulf Executive Strategic 
Leadership Program Task Force Committee.
   Member of the Bretton Woods Committee. 
Professional Experience
   President & Chief Executive of Arab Banking 
Corporation B.S.C. , Bahrain since 1997. 
   Chairman, Arab Banking Corporation (Egypt).
   Chairman, Arab Financial Services (E.C), 
Bahrain.
   Previously General Manager, Gulf 
International Bank (B.S.C.), Bahrain.
   Over 35 years of work experience as a 
Senior General, Commercial Banker and in the 
government sector.

DR. MARWAN AL-SAYEH
Member of the Board of Directors

Academic Achievements
   Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering, Charles 
University Prague and Ecole Genie Electrique de 
Lyon, 1971.
   B.Sc. in Electrical Engineering, 1962.
Professional Experience
   Managing Director of “Al Sayeh Project 
Development Consultancy”, 1993 – Present.
   Regional Director for Arab Gulf region for 
ALCATEL – ALSTOM group based in Beirut, 
Kuwait, 1964 – 1993.
   Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of 
Century Investment Group. 
   Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of 
Accelerator Technology Holdings.
   President of the French Foreign Trade 
Counselors for the Arab Gulf Region.
   Vice President of the French - Bahraini 
Business Club.
   Member of the Board of Trustees and Member 
of the Management Committee of the Welfare 
Association, a Palestinian NGO. 
   As acknowledgment of the French 
Government in developing the trade business 
between France and the Arabian Gulf Region, 
the French President awarded Dr. Al Sayeh the 
following decorations:   
− “Officier de la Légion d’Honneur”, 1999.
− “Chevalier de L’ordre National du Mérite” 1986.

MR. YOUSEF ABDELMAULA
Member of the Board of Directors

Academic Achievements
   M.A. Sc. in Business Management, Hartford 
University, USA, 1977.
   B.A. in Business Management, Benghazi 
University, Libya, 1970.
Professional Experience
   Member of the Board of Directors, Arab Libyan 
Foreign Bank, Libya.
   Member of the Board of Directors, Arab 
Banking Corporation (Bahrain).

DR. KHALED KAWAN
Member of the Board of Directors

Academic Achievements
   State Doctorate Degree in Banking Laws, 
University of Paris, Sorbonne, France.
Professional Experience
   Head of Legal & Compliance and Corporate 
Secretary of Arab Banking Corporation (B.S.C.).
   Member of the Board of Directors, Arab 
Banking Corporation (Egypt), (S.A.E.).

Introductory Brief on the Chairman and the Board
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MR. NOUR NAHAWI
Member of the Board of Directors
& Chief Executive Officer

Academic Achievements
   M.A. in International Administration, Vermont, 
USA, 1974.
   B. of Arts, Colby College, USA, 1973.
Professional Experience
   Managing Director and CEO, Arab Banking 
Corporation (Jordan) since 2006.
   S.V.P. Arab World Division Manager, Arab 
Banking Corporation (Bahrain), 2003-2006.
   CEO BNP Paribas, Cairo, 2000-2003.
   General Manager, BNP Paribas, Bahrain, 1996-
2000.
   Regional Representative, Banque Paribas, 
Beirut, 1993-1996.
   General Manager, Banque Paribas, Muscat, 
1990-1993.
   Regional Manager, Banque Paribas, Bahrain, 
1988-1990.
   Deputy Manager, Banque Paribas North 
America Division, Paris, 1985-1988.
   Deputy General Manager, Banque Paribas, 
Abu Dhabi, 1981-1985.
   Branch Manager, Banque Paribas, London, 
1979-1981.
   Deputy General Manager, Banque Paribas, 
Muscat, 1975-1979.

MR. MUBARAK AL-MANSOURI
Member of the Board of Directors

Academic Achievements
   Masters in Business Administration (MBA) 
in Finance / University of West Florida (UWF), 
Pensacola, Florida. 
Professional Experience
   Founding Director General of Abu Dhabi 
Retirement Pensions and Benefits Fund 
(ADRPBF).
   Member of the Board of Directors, Abu 
Dhabi National Company for Building Materials 
(BILDCO).
   Member of the Board of Directors, Abu Dhabi 
Holding Company
   Member of the Board of Directors, UAE's 
National Central Cooling Company (Tabreed)
   Member of the Board of Directors, Arab 
Banking Corporation (Bahrain ).
   Member of the Board of Directors Arab 
International Bank, Egypt.

H.E. MR. MOHAMMAD AKEL AL-BILTAJI
Member of the Board of Directors

Academic Achievements
   London General Certificate Examination, 1959.
   Higher Diploma in Education / Eartham 
College, USA, 1962.
   Senior Aviation Management Association. 
Professional Experience
   Special Advisor to His Majesty King Abdullah 
II (2 years).
   Senator – Jordanian Senate – Chairman, 
Tourism & Heritage Committee. 
   Chief Commissioner – Aqaba Special Economic 
Zone Authority (3 years).
   Chairman – Jordan Tourism Board (5 years).
   Minister of Tourism and Antiquities (5 years).
   Senior Vice President Royal Jordanian Airlines 
(26 years).
   President – Arab Wings (2 years).
   Jordan Television – News Anchor (6 years).
   Industrial Training – Aramco (6 years).
   Holds a number of high Jordanian and Foreign 
decorations.

MR. TAREK AKEL
Deputy CEO
Corporate Banking Group

Academic Achievements
   MBA in Finance / Baylor University.
   M.A. in Economics / Texas Tech University.
   BA in Int'l Economics / Texas Tech University.
Professional Experience 
   First Vice President, Arab Banking Corporation, 
BSC.
   Financial Consultant – Merrill Lynch 
International Bank (Bahrain).
   Investment Analyst (CAMENA) Department, 
the International Finance Corporation, World 
Bank Group / Washington DC. 

MR. AHMAD AL-KHUB
Deputy CEO
Retail Banking Group

Academic Achievements
   B.A. in Economics / Banking and Finance- 
Yarmouk University.
   Numerous international and local courses and 
seminars in various banking activities.
Professional Experience
   Assistant General Manager / Retail Banking / 
Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan).
   Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan), 1993- 
present.
   Other banking institutions, 1975- 1993.
   Member of the Management Council / ABC 
Investments.
   Member of the Board of Directors / National 
Chlorine Industries Co.

MR. AMMAR AL-SAFADI
Deputy CEO
Operations and Support Group
Acting CEO till 1/6/2006 

Academic Achievements
   M.A. in International Economics, Essex 
University, UK.
   B.A. in Economics and Statistics, University of 
Jordan.
Professional Experience
   Assistant General Manager / Treasury and 
Investment, Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan).
   Deputy Head of the Management Council, ABC 
Investments.
   Manager, Private Banking Department, HSBC 
Bank, Amman.
   Manager, Treasury and Foreign Relations 
Department, Exports and Finance Bank.
   Manager, Treasury Department, Citibank, 
Amman.

Introductory Brief on Senior Executive Management

Introductory Brief on the Chairman and the Board
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Review of Operations

required reserves to JD7 million, and optional reserves to JD2.7 
million, while simultaneously, as indicated earlier, increasing 
Shareholder Equity. 

Deposits

In order to achieve the goal of developing available financial 
resources and satisfying the requirements of its expansion plan 
and the employment of its financial resources, the Bank continued 
to enhance and diversify its saving frameworks. These frameworks 
were designed, basically, to attract retail and commercial deposits, 
and concomitantly, expand the scope of its share from stable 
deposits of banks and banking corporations, which carry longer 
utilization horizons than retail deposits.  Moreover, the Bank paid 
special attention to low- and non-interest bearing deposits. This 
enabled it to reduce the average cost of deposits and achieve 
higher margins from deposit and commission revenues. 

Total deposits increased to JD251.5 million in 2006 from JD244 
million in 2005. Deposits of banks and banking corporations 
increased to JD97.6 million from JD45.6 million in the previous 
year. On-Demand deposits comprised 26 percent of total deposits; 
and the share of Non-Interest Bearing Deposits was 19.5 percent 
of total deposits. Thus, the Bank continued to attract short- 
and medium-term deposits to reemploy these deposits in its 
investment and credit portfolio in order to achieve higher profit 
margins without any adverse impact on its financial position.

Credit Facilities Portfolio

The Bank continued to implement its credit strategy in 2006. 
It accumulated additional successes and steadily enhanced its 
investment portfolio, and thus was able to participate in the 
financing of several economic projects and the participation in the 
provision of syndicated loans. The Net Credit Facilities portfolio 
increased from JD206 million in 2005 to JD238 million in 2006, an 
increase of JD32 million, or 15.5 percent. 

The commercial sector took the greatest share (52 percent 
or JD124 million) of the credit portfolio while the retail sector 
comprised JD83 million of the portfolio. This tangible increase 
came in conjunction with the improvement of the quality of the 
credit portfolio as Non-Operating Debt decreased to 5 percent 
of the debt portfolio, which is one of the best ratios locally and 
internationally. Consequently, the provisions and suspended 
interest decreased covering more than 100 percent of total Non-
Operating Debt. Among the greatest successes achieved through 
the implementation of the credit strategy was increasing the 
share of the Bank in the retail sector. The Bank’s share in the 
retail sector grew by 21.5 percent, especially since this sector is 
characterized by stable returns, low credit risk, risk diversification, 
expansion, and overall stability.

Retail Sector

The year 2006 represented the last phase of the implementation 
phases of the strategic plan, which was adopted by the Board of 
Directors toward the end of 2003. The Executive Management 
of the Bank was to follow the plan for 3 years. In addition to 
what it achieves in terms of stability in the growth of profit ratios, 
especially in light of the relatively low risk of the sector, the plan 
is based on the basic principles of the retail-banking sector and 
aims for this sector to become one of the most productive sectors 
of the Bank.

The results of 2006 affirm the achievement of the goals of the 

Introduction

In continuation with its strong and ongoing performance for 
five consecutive years, Jordan’s economic indicators for 2006 had 
positive results in all the different economic activities in Jordan, 
with a high degree of balanced growth among the different 
sectors. Jordan, thereby, recorded in 2006, a growth rate of 6 
percent in Gross Domestic Product (GDP) at constant prices, 
the highest growth rate achieved among all the surrounding 
economies. 

The achieved growth rate clearly indicates that the Jordanian 
economy is growing steadily, enjoys a high level of competitiveness 
and attractiveness, and is based on solid fundamentals, supported 
by a stimulating investment environment, proper legislative 
climate, and an open economy mindset. Thus, it was able to attract 
large investment opportunities in search of a safe haven and an 
economic environment characterized by complete freedom.

Underpinning the stellar performance has been well-
coordinated factors that contributed to a national economy, where 
its enlightened royal leadership made sustainable development 
the topmost priority of the Jordan National Agenda. His Majesty’s 
leadership invested enduring political efforts, channelled through 
a steady and focused vision stemming from the underlying 
principle that economic growth and development is the first 
prerequisite for all other developments, whether at the local or 
regional levels.

The outstanding results that the Jordanian economy continued 
to achieve, not only in the past year, but also throughout the first 
years of the third millennium, are proof of the wisdom of this 
vision. The results are ever-present in the accumulation of social 
gains, deepened internal security and stability, increasing capital 
expenditures, enhanced foreign investment inflows, decreasing 
national debt, building strong foreign currency reserves, and the 
other marked results and achievements. 

Financial Results

Within this appropriate economic environment, and the 
availability of greater opportunities for investment and profit, 
and based on the increased confidence in the fundamentals of 
the Jordanian economy, ABC Bank (Jordan) continued its march 
toward success and advancement. It achieved, in 2006, while 
continuing to implement its various development plans, positive 
results that were similar to those of past years in terms of 
profitability and growth, as recorded in the various categories of 
its general budget.

In spite of the decrease of the volume of trade in the Amman 
Bourse, and consequently, the decrease in the Bank’s return 
on investment and profits from trading in stocks, in addition to 
the decrease in its non-recurring profits, the Bank, through its 
adopted policies, maintained a normal annual profit level. Net 
after tax profits were JD11 million; total assets were raised to 
JD517.7 million from JD410.8 million in the previous year, an 
increase of 26 percent. Shareholder Equity increased to JD65.8 
million, compared to JD52.9 million in the previous year, while the 
Capital Adequacy Ratio reached 19.32 percent. These excellent, 
confidence building results were achieved through the adoption 
of a number of policies, plans, and well thought-out programs; 
including, primarily, the prudent credit policy upheld by the Bank 
for several years now, whereby the direct credit facilities item 
increased from JD206 million in 2005 to JD238 million, an increase 
of 15.5 percent, in 2006. 

Consequently, the Bank was able to continue to shore up its 
capital base. It increased its capital from JD34.5 million in 2005 to 
JD44.85 million in 2006 and continued to accumulate its legally 
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its branches given that these branches are in compliance with the 
Bank’s strategic goals from branching. 

Based on the above, the Bank continued, in 2006, to 
modernize its branches whereby modernization has included its 
main branch and Al Bayader-Wadi Seer branch. Based on a study 
of the performance of ATMs and in order to cover better locations 
and meet the demands of Bank clients, there were changes in 
some of the locations of ATMs. The ATM service is offered in 27 
locations in the various regions of the Kingdom. Furthermore, 
the technology used to operate the ATMs has been improved to 
become more effective and offer a wider scope for delivering 
new services through these machines. The bank also offered at 
the beginning of 2006 SMS mobile services to its customers to 
enable them to immediately and instantly be alerted, through 
their mobile devices, of the activities of their accounts and credit 
cards.

To build on realized accomplishments and accumulated 
expertise and suitable infrastructure, the management started 
to prepare since the beginning of 2006 a new strategic plan for 
the retail sector for the years 2007-2010. While fully cognizant 
of the intensity of competition in this sector and the challenges 
arising there from, the plan will achieve an even greater launch 
of services in the retail sector and increase the share of the Bank 
in the retail banking market. 

Corporate Banking Services

In line with the directives of the new Executive Management, 
the Bank moved in 2006 to invigorate and activate the role of 
the Bank and corporate credit. This move was motivated by the 
desire of the Bank to increase the effectiveness of this service and 
expand the corporate customer base of the Bank. The strategic 
focus on corporate credit is a direct consequence of the economic 
growth and development experienced in the Kingdom and the 
improvement in the investment climate in Jordan. It will also 
bolster the Bank’s greater effective participation in corporate 
credit, which comprises the larger share of the credit portfolio and 
achieves significant returns to the Bank among its profit centres.

Concepts and the plan to place the department on solid grounds 
were in place in the second half of 2006, which will serve as a 
launch pad for the year 2007 and the coming years. The targets 
of the plan were: 

• Increase the participation of the Credit Relations Department 
in achieving the goals of the Bank, particularly enhancing and 
increasing the operating profits of the Bank to achieve a higher 
return to shareholders. 

• Restructuring and organizing the Credit Relations Department 
to achieve the principal of 'relationship management' and support 
and enhance the staff of the Department with new expertise and 
capabilities to work closely with the current exceptional talents in 
the Department as one team.

• Propagate and enhance the name and role of ABC Bank 
(Jordan) as a leading bank in the area of corporate and project 
finance at the local, Arabic, regional and international levels. 

• Enhance the relationship of the Bank with its current clients 
and build bridges of cooperation with all the economic sectors 
of Jordan, including new opportunities in the area of service and 
finance of companies and corporations and existing and potential 
projects.

• Activate the role of the Bank in financing large projects, 
which were offered in all the investment, development, and 
infrastructure sectors in light of the development and expansion 
that is evident in all the sectors of the Jordanian economy.

• Invigorate and activate communication between ABC Bank 
(Jordan) and the rest of the units of ABC throughout the world 
in order to supply these units with all the available information 

strategic plan at all levels. Revenues of the retail sector contributed 
29 percent of the total revenues of the Bank. The Retail Credit 
was JD83 million, comprising 35 percent of the Bank’s total credit. 
Deposits of retail customers made up 67 percent of total deposits. 
In addition, the customer base of the Bank expanded, increasing 
awareness of the Bank to become one of the favoured banks for 
retail banking services to a significant niche in the local market. 

Among the greatest achievements of the Executive 
Management of the Bank was the transformation that occurred 
in the internal culture and practices of the Bank, which are the 
most important principles for achieving success in the sector. The 
Executive Management worked throughout the past 3 years with 
clear determination on preparing manpower to achieve a high 
level of knowledge and capability in facing the requirements 
of the new era mandated by entry into the retail sector, and 
reoriented its other resources, particularly the physical ones, to 
utilize them in an optimal manner to achieve the goals of the 
strategic plan. 

The Executive Management, within the framework of 
implementing the plan, identified and specified the targeted 
groups within the sector, offered suitable products that met the 
needs of these groups, and provided services through various 
channels. The most important channels for delivery were the 
bank branches, which were revamped, internally and externally, 
to become attractive to clients and to include, as well, electronic 
services. The latter proved their role as a suitable means for 
delivering services effectively and speedily. Moreover, the sales 
force was instrumental in delivering the service effectively to the 
sites of clients. 

Returning to the results of 2006, the credit facilities portfolio 
witnessed a substantial growth that reached JD83 million with 
an increase of JD15 million over its level at the end of 2005, or 
21.5 percent. In line with the strategic directives of the past 3 
years, the growth retail credit portfolio comprised 72 percent of 
the growth of total credit of the Bank in 2006.

In contrast to the past 2 years, where the growth and the credit 
portfolio, depended on one product, the year 2006 witnessed a 
clear growth in all its credit products, including personal loans, 
housing loans, car purchase loans, and credit card loans. This 
clearly indicates the maturity and experience achieved within 
the Bank in this regard. Taking into consideration that the Bank 
depends on sophisticated and conservative credit standards, which 
are unequalled in the local market, the amicable performance of 
its credit portfolio is destined to establish for a strong surge in the 
near future.

As to products and their marketing, the Executive Management 
offered, in 2006, debit accounts instead of salary transfer, loans 
to professionals, the MasterCard credit card, and personal loans 
against nominal guarantees. In 2006, the marketing campaigns 
for these products and the public relations’ activities undertaken 
by the management to promote the Bank and its products were 
highly effective. Additionally, the Bank launched a successful 
marketing campaign to transfer the balance to credit cards, 
and another campaign for promoting debit accounts instead of 
salary transfer, and joint campaigns with the largest car retailers 
to finance the purchase of vehicles. The marketing campaign 
for personal loans, which the Bank launches every summer, is 
considered one of the most important and successful marketing 
campaigns. In addition, the patronage of the Bank of several social 
and cultural activities contributed significantly toward increasing 
awareness of the Bank, its activities, and banking products.

The Bank opened a new branch in Khalda in 2006 to join the 
branch network strategically located in the capital, its suburbs and 
the main cities of the Kingdom. The number of branches in 2006 
remained 12 since another branch was closed in another area. It 
is important to note that the management of the Bank depends 
on scientific and objective indicators in choosing the location of 
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Due to the prompt responses of the Department, its efforts 
were successful in evaluating and financing the large projects that 
were offered in 2006. The projects included for example, the Disi 
Project, the Queen Alia International Airport Expansion Project, the 
Egypt Jordan Gas Line Project, in addition to telecommunications 
networks development projects such as the Umniah Project, 
which was  approved for a loan of JD10 million-- the company will 
utilize these funds in 2007 based upon its needs and contracts. 

Active credit, in line with the Bank and the Department’s intent 
to maintain the quality of the credit portfolio and improve the 
nature of established and attracted accounts, increased to reach 
93.5 percent of total direct credit in 2006, compared with 91.5 
percent in 2005. Concomitantly, emphasis continued to be on 
maintaining the quality of account management and attracting 
new quality accounts to maintain the quality of the credit portfolio 
and enhance its performance. 

In spite of the success that was achieved by the department in 
the area of corporate services, this success is only the starting point 
and a basis for greater growth and success in 2007. Underpinning 
this drive is to achieve the vision and mission of the Bank in the 
area of corporate services and increase the share of the Bank in 
corporate credit and the financing of large projects, which will 
lead to greater operating profits for the Bank and maximize the 
return on Shareholder Equity.

Treasury and Investment Operations

The activities of the Treasury and Investment Department are 
considered among the most important sources of finance of the 
Bank since it handles the daily management of cash and provides 
a means for predicting market risk. The Department manages 
the assets and liabilities within the frameworks accredited by 
the Asset and Liability Committee of the Bank. Additionally, this 
Department stipulates the internal exchange rates among the 
various departments of the Bank. The Department effectively 
and competently conducts the following tasks: managing the 
stock portfolio, currency markets, derivatives, and currency 
exchange. Moreover, the department enters procedures and 
controls to manage treasury operations at the Bank in a manner 
that facilitates instant objectively based decisions and effective 
management of treasury operations. 

On the other hand, the Treasury and Investment Department 
continued its traditional role of managing assets and liabilities, 
building an investment portfolio that guarantees the highest 
possible return within the most possible framework with the 
greatest possible balance between currency risk, profitability 
and interest rates. The Bank continued to provide its exceptional 
services to its clients in the area of foreign currency, futures, and 
derivatives. Resultantly, the revenues of the activities of the 
Department increased to reach JD3.368 million in 2006.

Arab Cooperation Company for Financial 
Investment

As in the case of all the Arab financial markets, the Amman 
Bourse was subject to significant reductions in trading volumes, 
number of contracts and the stock price index. Cumulatively, this 
had a clear effect on the investment portfolios of banks and their 
profitability, after having achieved record profits in 2005. 

The Arab Cooperation Company, which is owned totally by 
the ABC Bank (Jordan), represents the investment arm of the 
Bank. Through this company, the Bank offered several suitable 
investment products to its clients in the local and foreign markets, 
including several currency and capital instruments. 

and data on business opportunities and potential activities of 
these units; and benefit in return from any opportunities and 
information communicated to ABC (Jordan) from these units and 
their experiences and competencies.

• Emphasize the activation and development of the role of 
the Credit Relations Department in the marketing and sales of all 
the other products and services of the Bank, such as the retail, 
treasury, and investment products, in addition to the products of 
the Arab Cooperation Company. 

• Establish and activate the Technical Support Unit within 
the department to undertake the documentation, follow up, 
reporting, and other functions from the technical and managerial 
side, which will avail greater time to credit executives to be used 
for marketing purposes and attraction of more clients and credit 
facilitation to the Bank.

• Increase the utilization of credit facilities availed to customers 
to the highest possible extent to achieve the highest return for 
the Bank. 

• Focus on increasing Bank revenues from indirect credit facilities 
by activating and increasing the number of these facilities. 

• Improve the nature and quality of the credit portfolio through 
follow-up and avoidance of the degradation of the performance 
of accounts and utilization.

• Focus on treating some accounts and improving their 
classification to improve the overall performance of the credit 
portfolio, avoid the classification of these accounts as doubtful 
accounts, and lower the additional allocations during 2006 in line 
with the requirements of the Central Bank of Jordan.

• Continue to take all administrative and legal procedures to 
exit from some of the undesirable credit relations in a manner 
consistent with the credit policy of the Bank.

• Focus on and ensure follow-up and monitoring of accounts 
to glean indications of potential risk, which will lead to early 
detection and of any indicators of possible default in order to 
treat it early.

The performance and results of the Department in the year 2006 
indicate its success in achieving these goals. The Credit Relations 
Department achieved substantive growth in net operating profits 
for the year 2000 to reach JD3.763 million compared to JD1.42 
million in 2005, a growth rate of 163 percent. Net profit before tax 
increased in 2006 by JD578,000 compared to 2005, a growth rate 
of 11.61 percent. The non-performing loans that were collected 
in 2006 were JD2.070 million, compared to JD4.825 million in 
2005. The difference has been compensated and net profits 
before taxes were increased, as above, by increasing operating 
profits as well as decreasing operating expenditures by 30.51 
percent and decreasing special allocations by 76.39 percent, and 
general allocations for 2006 compared to 2005 according to the 
instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

In light of the efforts utilized to increase the credit portfolio, 
the total volume of approved credit during 2006 reached JD78.141 
million of which JD59.164 million were implemented as follows:

		  Granted		  Implemented
Direct Credit	 JD 52.350 million	 JD 35.308 million
Indirect Credit	 JD 25.791 million	 JD 23.856 million

Indirect credit grew by 57 percent in 2006 compared to 2005. 
Direct credit, in spite of the size of granted and implemented 
credit indicated above, grew by 7.2 percent to reach JD137.844 
million by the end of 2006 compared to JD133.593 million at the 
end of 2005. Unprogrammed payments that occurred in 2006 
to the volume of JD7 million were behind the decrease in the 
above growth rate. The majority of which was payment of credit 
granted to purchase stocks that were repaid due to the decreased 
performance of the Amman Stock Exchange in 2006.
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Bahrain, to address loopholes.
The Bank started, in 2006, the necessary procedures to approve 

monitoring and risk management systems in preparation for the 
implementation of the requirements of the Basel II Committee. It 
activated the Risk Management Department and supplied it with 
qualified employees while utilizing consultants to evaluate the 
level of readiness of the Bank to meet the requirements.  

The Bank recently formed a committee to prepare a plan to 
continue the work for meeting the requirements of monitoring 
authorities; and establishing an effective and independent 
department for risk management to ensure the continuity of 
work in case of an emergency. The plan also includes delineations 
and stipulations for minimizing time and losses in the case of 
unavoidable stoppages until the restart of work. 

On the other hand, the Bank adopts a conservative policy 
toward banking risks emanating from loans and credit. This is 
conducted within a stable formulation and balance that aim to 
reduce the volume of high risk credit while attracting credit that 
has high returns and acceptable risks. This is in addition to the 
continuous efforts of the management to collect due credit. The 
Bank was able, in 2006, to reduce the value of Non-Performing 
Loans by more than 19.57 percent. This led to reducing the ratio 
of non-performing loans to total loans to 4.44 percent only, 
compared with 6.24 percent at the end of 2005. 

The Bank also continued to increase debt allocations such that 
the coverage of non-performing loans increased to 120 percent; 
a clear indication of the improvement in procedures and stability 
in the financial position of the Bank. The Bank also follows a 
policy of diversity at the level of clients, economic sectors, and 
geographic areas, which contributed to reducing both credit and 
market risks. 

At the operational risk level, the Bank continued to strengthen 
internal control systems through a comprehensive set of policies 
and written procedures that covered all the relevant laws, 
regulations and instructions. It also activated the role of the 
Compliance Department in ensuring the commitment of the Bank 
in implementing all the accredited directives and procedures. 
In addition, the Bank continues to implement the principle 
of centralization in implementing directives while continuing 
to support the Operations Control Unit to conduct its duties of 
investigating the soundness of implemented operations. The 
management continues to modernize these systems in accordance 
with new directives and regulations.

Technological Development

In its dedicated pursuit to keep abreast of modern developments, 
and the Bank’s desire to fully respond to its clients’ demands, and 
satisfy their banking needs, and in order to remain in a locally 
competitive position offering the best high quality services the 
Bank implemented and developed a set of regulations that 
contribute to providing quality services including: 

• Credit card management system to implement the EMV 
concept.

• Enhancing the capabilities of ATMs in terms of quality and 
quantity.

• Introducing and implementing the Mastercard service.
• Implementing the Anti-Money Laundering System (AML).
• Launching a set of programs that contribute to and assist in 

providing a high standard of services in:
• Credit evaluation system
• Safe deposit boxes
• Compliance
• Modernization of the intranet of the Bank
These technological advances were added to the developments 

In line with the developments in the Bourse, and in order to 
increase the effectiveness of the investment arm of the Bank, the 
management took several procedures and steps to achieve this 
goal, including:

1. The purchase of a new building to host the Arab Cooperation 
Company for Financial Investments. The cost of the building was 
JD2 million and the interior design contract was signed with a 
specialized company. The building will avail a suitable location 
for the clients and employees of the company to provide a better 
service that achieves the target profits, and become the market 
leader in the financial investment market at the local, regional 
and international levels.

2. In light of the goals of the company to expand and the 
continued increase in the number of its clients, a new accounting 
system was introduced. The system will provide precise and 
detailed reports of the accounts of the clients to save time and 
better utilize the skills and expertise of the employees of the 
company.

3. Development of an Online Trading System at the company, 
which has been registered with the official bodies and the 
Amman Stock Exchange Commission and the Depositary. The Arab 
Cooperation Company achieved JD3.3 million in profits in 2006, 
which contributed significantly toward improving the revenues 
of the Bank. 

4. The company appointed Mr. Khalid Zakaria as Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company effective 1/7/2006. 

5. The company also contributed toward serving the local 
society through generous donations to charities such as the 
Orphan Care Society, the Young Muslim Women Association, 
and Ministry of Awqaf, as well as serving the regional society 
through donations to the Palestinian and Lebanese peoples, with 
donations that reached JD24,620 during 2006.

Risk Management and Internal Monitoring 
Systems

In line with its established banking traditions, and the directives 
of the monetary regulatory authorities, the Bank continued its 
prudent policy toward managing all types of risk. It employs a set 
of advanced systems to control these risks without destabilizing 
the profit risk equation. The risk management systems included 
several of the administrative levels at the Bank, including the 
Board of Directors. 

In this regard, the Bank reformed its administrative structure 
in 2006 to separate the tasks of credit management from the 
risk department, which included three specialized units (credit 
risk, market risk, and operational risk). The risk department was 
supplied with the necessary and capable staff to implement all 
the monitoring and control procedures that are required according 
to Basel II and the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan in 
this regard.

The Risk Management Committee was formed during 2006. 
It is comprised of several members of the Board of Directors, 
and the Risk Management Director from the mother company 
in Bahrain. The Committee meets regularly to formulate the 
general framework of the risk strategy and relevant policies. 
The Committee also reviews and evaluates risks on a quarterly 
basis and submits a detailed report to the Board of Directors. 
Also among this Committee’s tasks is to approve the ceilings and 
dealing limits on the account, sectoral, and country level. 

The Bank recently formed a committee to prepare a plan to 
implement the requirements of Basel II. The committee specifies 
the requirements for compliance with the conditions and 
infrastructure of the international standards while coordinating 
with the Central Bank of Jordan, and the mother company in 
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the Board of Directors adopted a modern organizational structure, 
which included preparing the secondary organizational structures 
for the Bank’s different departments. The Bank also adopted a 
Job Description Manual for all administrative and supervisory 
positions, evaluated these positions, and then started to prepare 
the policies and procedures that were relevant to the following:

• Attraction, selection, and appointment 
• Training of human resources
• Incentive and retention plans
• Promotion
• Policies and procedures manual for human resources
• Employee manual

In order to retain competent employees and to continue to 
modernize the salary scale and privileges to be consistent with 
what is provided to the employees of the banking sector in 
Jordan, the Bank participated in an annual survey of the salaries 
and privileges in the Jordanian banking sector. This survey is 
conducted by a specialized consulting company in cooperation 
with the Association of Banks in Jordan and with the participation 
of 12 banks that are operating in Jordan. 

To continue the Bank’s efforts that aim to invest in human 
resources and develop its employees’ skills, abilities and 
knowledge, in addition to increasing the efficiency, productivity 
and organization of work, the customer service indexes have 
already been completed, in addition to improving call answering 
skills and the work uniform.

In order to continue to develop the services of the Bank through 
the monitoring and evaluation of the service level provided by its 
employees, and evaluation of the communication channels with 
customers, a specialized company has been contracted to conduct 
mystery shopping activities to audit the level of competitiveness 
in the following:

1. The quality of service of the Bank in general and the method 
in which these services are offered, including audit off-branch 
operations

2. The competitiveness of the performance of the Customer 
Service employees, treasurers and branch managers

3. The performance of ATMs
Additionally, through this project, the services of the Bank 

pertaining to account statements, currency transfer, the opening 
and closing of accounts, issuing check books, loan requests, and 
issuing and cancelling credit cards are being audited.  All branches 
have been covered, including the branches of Irbid, Zarqa and 
Aqaba.

The security system of the main branch and the other branches 
have been modernized through the installation of early warning 
systems against fire and theft as well as a camera control system 
located at the entrances which is connected to an early warning 
station and the relevant security departments in Jordan.

implemented by the Bank in 2005. Past year’s developments 
included: the SMS service, online commercial banking, 
commercial financing system, letters of credit, bills for collection, 
and guarantees, and the new automated teller machines (ENME). 
The developments of 2006 are to improve the performance of 
the existing ATM network, increase the protection level of the 
internal network, improve the infrastructure, and provide it 
with the necessary, new and developed protection and security 
techniques.

Administrative and Organizational 
Development

The Bank continued to strengthen its technological base and 
build excellent relations with its clients by satisfying and meeting 
their different banking needs. Based on its established conviction 
that the human aspect is the cornerstone of any desired 
development process, the Bank continued, in 2006, to implement 
its policy of enhancing its human resources through development 
and training, in addition to attracting new highly qualified skills.

To achieve better efficiency, and offer distinguished and 
advanced banking services, the Bank appointed 101 employees 
who possess the necessary scientific qualifications and experience, 
are able to deal with the modern banking operations, and are able 
to offer distinguished banking services. The number of the Bank’s 
employees was 394 at the end of the year. During the same year, 
71 employees resigned, leading to an employee turnover rate of 
18.5 percent.

In the field of training and development, the Bank’s 
management was keen to produce a qualitative leap in its training 
activities in 2006. The leap materialized by intensifying the efforts 
aimed at improving its employees’ skills, abilities and knowledge, 
and by seeking to keep up with the latest financial and banking 
developments. Therefore, 236 training seminars were held, with 
the participation of 1324 employees and distributed as follows: 

          			   Number of		 Number of 
			   Seminars 		  Employees	    
Training Centre Seminars	 40		  971
Local Institutes Seminars	 165		  317
Workshops and conferences 
Outside Jordan		  31		  36

As a result, and thanks to the efficiency of its human factor, 
the Bank maintained its foremost position in the local banking 
market, and increased its competitiveness by developing 
its human resource systems, boosting job commitment, and 
increasing loyalty and productivity. This and more were achieved 
in cooperation with a specialized consulting company. Moreover, 
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Main Financial Indicators (2001-2005)
							                   (JD thousand)

Statement / Year			   2006		  2005		  2004	               2003	             2002

Total Shareholders’ Equity		  65,781		  52,921		  43,024	             35,095	            28,850
Distributed Profits			     8,970*		  10,350		  6,900	             4,600	            3,000
Pretax profits			   15,952		  16,527		  8,382	             7,433	            3,728

* Distributed Profits (Suggested) for 2006

Main Financial Ratios (2005 & 2006)

		                                                              2006                              2005
   
- Return on average equity (RoE)			   18.50%	 24.72%
- Return on average assets (RoA)			   2.40%	 3.02%
- Operating expenses/ total income			   48.60%	 53.00%
- Direct credit facilities/ customers’ deposits  and margin accounts	 84.50%	 75.40%
- Capital adequacy 			   19.30%	 20.20%
- Non-performing facilities/ total direct facilities		  4.40%	 6.20%
- Employee profitability (JD, 000)			   27.90%	 32.60%
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Business Plan for the Year 2007

• Maximize shareholder equity and increase the return thereon by a minimum of 15%.
• Enhance the Bank’s competitive advantage and increase its market share in the banking sector. 
• Build a wide customer base and focus on attracting stable low-cost deposits.
• Improve present services and introduce additional modern banking services 
• Follow up on technical developments and the utilization of modern technologies in order to upgrade services and minimize as much 
as possible manual processes. 
• Develop electronic services including internet services and SMS.
• Expand the facilitation provided for small and medium size companies.
• Expand the retail credit portfolio in size and diversity and increase the share of the Bank in this regard. 
• Continue to grow the corporate credit portfolio, improve its quality, decrease the size of non-performing loans, and maintain a low 
level of risk.
• Expand the provision of the various types of investment services and services for investors in both the local and international 
markets. 
• Modernize the Bank’s branches to allow for improved customer service, as well as expand the network of branches in areas that are 
compatible with the Bank’s strategic goals.
• Further develop the Bank’s human resources and attract additional talent.
• Increase training and upgrading activities in order to achieve a high level of performance.
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Statement from the Board of Directors

The Subsidiary Company

The Arab Cooperation Company for Financial Investment (LLC), 
with a capital of JD15,600,000, and total equity of JD20,528,552 
up until 31/12/2006, is wholly owned by ABC (Jordan).  The 
company manages investment and brokerage services on behalf 
of its clients, in addition to offering financial advice for investing 
in financial papers. The financial statements for the year, which 
ended on December 31, 2006, were approved on February 8, 
2007 by a decree of the Board of Directors of the Arab Cooperation 
Company for Financial Investment. 

The Participation of ABC (Jordan) in Protecting 
the Environment and Serving the Local 
Community

ABC Bank, in carrying out its social responsibilities and its 
belief in its pioneering role as a community service provider, has 
carried out various social duties by contributing JD57,264 to the 
local community. The Bank’s most prominent contribution was 
in the form of participating in the private sector initiative for 
government schools in the Aqaba Special Economic Zone (ASEZ) 
by providing funds for the much needed maintenance of  the 
Fatima Al Zahara’ School, totaling JD20,000.

In 2006, the Bank also contributed to the activities of a number 
of organizations related to health, social, cultural, and charitable 
activities such as the Medical Aid Society for Palestinians, 
contributing JD3,500, centers for cancer, kidney disease, and 
heart disease JD3,900, the Ministry of Social Development and 
orphanages JD6,350, and the Organization for the Construction of 
Kerak and Salt JD2,500, among others.

Donations and Grants

ABC Bank has continued its approach of supporting social 
development efforts, directed mainly at a number of public 
institutions and charitable organizations, by providing funds 
totaling JD32,247.

The Bank has also donated JD9,847 to the Jordan River 
Foundation for the support of the Palestinians and Lebanese. It 
also donated JD8,000 to the Young Muslim Women Association, 
JD3,000 to the Jordanian Hashemite Fund for Human Development, 
JD3,000 to the Ministry of Awqaf, and others. 

Acknowledgment of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) 
acknowledges, as far as it knows and believes, that there are no 
fundamental issues that could affect the Bank’s ability to continue 
its activity throughout the next fiscal year of 2007. The Board 
also acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial 
statements; that the information cited in the Board of Directors’ 
Report is in line with the enclosed financial statements; and that 
the Bank has an effective and efficient Internal Control System.

Ghazi Abdul-Jawad		 Nour Nahawi
Chairman of the Board	 Managing Director / CEO

Acknowledgment of Authenticity of the 
Financial Statements

The Management of the Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) 
acknowledges the authenticity, accuracy and precision of the 
information and financial statements cited in this report.

Ghazi Abdul-Jawad		 Nour Nahawi
Chairman of the Board	 Managing Director / CEO

Basel Al-Naber
Chief Financial Officer 

The Bank’s Competitive Position

The Bank’s credit share of the Jordanian credit market is 2.3%, 
while the share of its deposits in the total deposits of the banking 
sector is 1.7%, and the share of the Bank’s shareholders’ equity 
to the total shareholders’ equity in the Jordanian banking sector 
is approximately 2.4%.

The Bank’s Activities and Branches

The Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) provides its customers 
with a set of complementary banking services in the areas of 
finance, trade, investment, financing, credit, correspondence 
services and international banking operations. The Bank operates 
through a network of 12 branches that cover the most dynamic 
commercial centres in the Kingdom, extending from Irbid in the 
north of Jordan to Aqaba in the south.

Capital Investment

Capital investment reached JD9,758,960.
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Statement from the Board of Directors

THE CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE CHAIRMAN, MEMBERS OF THE BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

A) THE CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD:

Name									                   Number of Shares
						          			      2006		             2005

Mr. Ghazi Abdul-Jawad				        Chairman	                 68577		          24675
Dr. Saleh Al-Humaidan				        Deputy Chairman                 1120		              862
ABC (IT) Services Ltd., London, 
represented by:
Mr. Mubarak Al-Mansouri				        Member	                   2242		            1725
ABC Securities (B.S.C.) (c), Bahrain, 
represented by: 
Dr. Khaled Kawan					         Member	                   1120		              862
Arab Banking Corporation (B.S.C.), Bahrain, 
represented by: 
Mr. Nour Nahawi					         Member	           38871036		    29900797
H.E. Mr. Mohammad Akel Al-Biltaji			       Member		      2275			   -
Mr. Yousef Abdelmaula 				        Member	      	       812		              625
Dr. Marwan Al-Sayeh				        Member		    22100			   -
H.E. Mr. Shafiq Zawaideh				        Member	                182000		        138000
Mr. Nour Nahawi  				                      Member/ CEO		    13000		            5000

B) THE CONTRIBUTIONS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

Mr. Ammar Al-Safadi				        Deputy CEO,
						          Operations & Support Group 	    2613			   -

THE INCENTIVES AND BONUSES RECEIVED BY THE CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD DURING 
2006 IN JORDANIAN DINARS

Name				    Bonuses*		  Transportation Imbursements		  Audit Committee Incentives	 Total

Mr. Ghazi Abdul-Jawad		  5,000			   19,101						      24,101
Dr. Saleh Al-Humaidan		  5,000			   14,732				    1,500		  21,232
H.E. Mr. Shafiq Zawaideh		  5,000			   10,990				    1,500		  17,490
Sheikh Rashed Al-Khalifa		  5,000			     3,000						        8,000
Dr. Khaled Kawan			   5,000			   13,010				    1,500		  19,510
Mr. Nour Nahawi			   5,000			   13,748						      18,748
Mr. Yousef Abdelmaula		  5,000			   11,067						      16,067
Dr. Marwan Al-Sayeh					       8,087					                     8,087
H.E. Mr. Mohammad Akel Al-Biltaji				      6,199					                     6,199
Mr. Mubarak Al-Mansouri					       7,050					                     7,050

Total	 	 	 	 35,000		               106,984				    4,500	             146,484

* Membership Bonuses for 2005 paid during 2006
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Statement from the Board of Directors

EMPLOYEE QUALIFICATIONS

					     Employees according		 Number of 		  Number of 
					     to Qualifications 		  Employees (Bank)		  Employees (ABCI)

Number of Employees		  394	 Higher Education		  219			   47
Employees’ Turnover Rate		  18.5 %	 Diploma			     62			   -
					     Non-University Degrees	   62			     4

					     Total			   343			   51

SHARE PRICE AT YEAR END (JORDANIAN DINARS)

2006			   2005			   2004			   2003			   2002

2.620			   4.550			   4.180			   3.480			   1.010

OWNERS OF 5% OR MORE OF ABC (JORDAN) SHARES 

The Arab Banking Corporation (B.S.C.), Bahrain, is the sole shareholder of ownership of 5% or more of the ABC (Jordan) shares, 
whereby the share ownership of ABC (Bahrain) reached 86.6715%.

TOTAL EMPLOYEES SALARIES

Total Salaries of Senior Management				       JD 255,496
Total Salaries of Senior Management and Employees		  JD 4,900,513

Name					     Annual Salary		  Annual Bonuses		  Per Diem
Mr. Nour Nahawi				      62,038 *		          0			      903
Mr. Ammar Al-Safadi			     75,194			   25,000			   1,887
Mr. Ahmad Al-Khub			     59,565			   17,000			      374
Mr. Tarek Akel				      16,699 *		          0			   1,981

Total					     213,496			   42,000			   5,145

* As of  date of designation

TOTAL AUDITORS’ FEES

Auditors’ Fees- Ernst & Young				    JD 34,000

15
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Additional Disclosure Statements as per the Regulations of the Jordan Securities Commission (JSC)

1. The Bank does not enjoy any privilege or government protection on any products or activities. Additionally, it did not receive any 
patents or franchises during the year 2006.
2. The Bank complies with all international laws, rules and regulations, which relates to its business and has not faced any decisions 
from any governmental or international organization that has affected its business or its competition. 
3. The Bank does not rely on any particular customer or supplier (local or abroad) and remains autonomous in order to increase the 
number of customers and suppliers so the degree of dependence on any one entity does not exceed 10% at any given time. 
4. All activities and operations performed by the Bank during 2006 were of a recurrent nature and were in harmony with the main 
activities of the Bank, and no extraordinary activities that have any financial effect were witnessed during the year. 
5. No contracts, projects, commitments, were held between the Bank and the chairman, or any Board of Director members, or the 
Chief Executive Officer, or any employee except the commitments that were declared in this report.

Statement from the Board of Directors
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) (a public shareholding company), 
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2006 and the consolidated income statement, consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory notes.  

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards.  This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance 

with International Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
for the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank as of 

December 31, 2006 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards.

Ernst & Young
Amman – Jordan
February 21, 2007

Independent Auditors’ Report 
To The Shareholders Of Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan)
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 
As of December 31, 2006 
(In Jordanian Dinars)

		  Notes	 2006      	 2005     
ASSETS			 

Cash and balances with Central Banks	 4	 49,557,019 	 64,669,876
Balances at banks and financial institutions	 5	         122,563,536	 71,620,793
Deposits at banks and financial institutions	 6	 1,169,850	 1,882,311
Trading investments	 7	 139,749	 240,470
Direct credit facilities, net	 8	 238,110,726	 206,128,306
Available for sale investments	 9	 78,147,083	 37,929,691
Held to maturity investments, net	  10	 1,994,543                                 -        
Premises and equipment, net	  11	 9,758,960	 7,471,696
Intangible assets, net	  12	 1,072,136	 713,147
Other assets	  13	 15,073,209	 19,948,494
Deferred tax assets	  19	           67,351	         181,696

Total Assets			  517,654,162	 410,786,480

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities -

Banks and financial institutions’ deposits	 14	 97,579,976	 45,645,404
Customers’ deposits	 15	 251,488,306	 243,960,515
Margin accounts	 16	 30,180,516	 29,552,110
Loans and borrowings	 17	 57,446,141	 9,807,527
Sundry provisions	 18	 122,728	 151,992
Income tax liabilities	 19	 4,965,214	 4,503,342
Other liabilities	 20	   10,089,910	   24,244,770

Total Liabilities	 		 451,872,791	 357,865,660

Equity

Equity attributable to the Bank’s shareholders

Paid in capital	 21	 44,850,000	 34,500,000
Statutory reserve	 22	 7,004,848	 5,372,339
Voluntary reserve	 22	 2,663,494	 2,663,494
General banking risk reserve	 22	 2,099,960	 1,631,383
Cumulative change in fair values, net	 23	 35,978	 (1,833,325)
Retained earnings	 24	     9,127,091	   10,586,929

Total Equity			    65,781,371	   52,920,820

	Total Liabilities and Equity			  517,654,162	 410,786,480

20



The accompanying notes from 1 to 51 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

ABC Jordan Annual Report 2006

Consolidated Income Statement 
For the year ended December 31, 2006 

(In Jordanian Dinars)

21

		  Notes	      2006     	      2005   

Interest income	 25	 30,612,925	 20,295,226
Interest expense 	 26	 (15,621,457)	 (8,376,363)
	
Net interest income			  14,991,468	 11,918,863

Net commission income	 27	    1,923,206	   1,672,480

Net interest and commission income			  16,914,674	 13,591,343

Other income -
Gains arising from foreign currencies			  676,579	 688,620
Gain (loss) from trading investments	 28	 535,582	 (166,848)
Gain from available for sale investments	 29	 658,052	 1,906,554
Other income	 30	    7,923,819	 10,954,657
	
	Gross profit			  26,708,706	 26,974,326

Expenses -
Employees’ costs	 31	 (5,854,506)	 (8,021,466)
Depreciation and amortisation	        11 & 12	 (1,108,885)	 (1,000,333)
Other expenses	 32	 (5,391,997)	 (5,250,486)
Provision for credit losses	 8	 2,213,617	    3,843,721
Sundry provisions			  (615,000)	 (18,358)

Total expenses			  (10,756,771)	 (10,446,922)

	Profit before income tax			  15,951,935	 16,527,404

Income tax	 19	 (4,960,687)	 (4,666,061)

Profit for the year			  10,991,248	 11,861,343

Basic earnings per share                                                         33                                     0.245	                          0.264
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended December 31, 2006 
(In Jordanian Dinars)

22

					    General	 Cumulative
		 Paid in	 Statutory	 Voluntary	 Banking Risk	 Change in	 Retained	 Total
		 Capital	 Reserve	 Reserve	 Reserve	 Fair Values	 Earnings	 Equity

2006 -

Balance as of January 1,2006	 34,500,000	 5,372,339	 2,663,494	 1,631,383	 (1,833,325)	 10,586,929	 52,920,820
Cumulative change in 
fair values, net	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,869,303	 -	 1,869,303
Total income recognized 
directly in equity	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,869,303	 -	 1,869,303
Profit for the year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 10,991,248	 10,991,248	

Total income and expenses 
for the year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,869,303	 10,991,248	 12,860,551

Increase in capital	 10,350,000	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (10,350,000)	 -	
Transfer to/from reserves	 -	 1,632,509	 -	 468,577	 -	 (2,101,086)	 -

Balance as of 
December 31,2006	 44,850,000	 7,004,848	 2,663,494	 2,099,960	 35,978	 9,127,091	 65,781,371

2005 -

Balance as of January 1,2005	 27,600,000	 3,671,825	 2,663,494	 1,415,752	 131,148	 7,541,731	 43,023,950
Cumulative change in 
fair values, net	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (1,964,473)	 -	 (1,964,473)
Total expenses recognized 
directly in equity	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (1,964,473)	 -	 (1,964,473)
Profit for the year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 11,861,343	 11,861,343
Total income and expenses 
for the year	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (1,964,473)	 11,861,343	 9,896,870

Increase in capital	 6,900,000	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (6,900,000)	 -	
Transfer to/from reserves	 -	 1,700,514	 -	 215,631	 -	 (1,916,145)	 -

Balance as of 
December 31,2005	 34,500,000	 5,372,339	 2,663,494	 1,631,383	 (1,833,325)	 10,586,929	 52,920,820
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
For the year ended December 31, 2006 

(In Jordanian Dinars)

23

		  Notes	      2006     	      2005   

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before income tax			  15,951,935	 16,527,404
Adjustments -
	Depreciation and amortisation 			  1,108,885	 1,000,333
	Provision for credit losses			  (2,213,617)	 (3,843,721)
	Sundry provisions 			  615,000	 18,358
	Unrealized losses from trading investments			  91,386	 -       
	Payments from provisions			  (29,264)	 (33,639)
	Effect of exchange rate changes on 
cash and cash equivalents			  (120,275)	 (129,015)

	Profit before changes in operating 
assets and liabilities			  15,404,050	 13,539,720

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -

	(Increase) decrease in balances with Central
Banks that mature after three months			  (14,998,979)	 12,537,811
Decrease in deposits at banks and financial
institutions that mature after 3 months			  712,461	 -      
	Decrease in restricted balances with Banks			  -     	 26,135
	Decrease in trading investments			  9,335	 11,901,462
	(Increase) in direct credit facilities 			  (29,768,803)	 (33,673,605)
	Decrease (increase) in other assets			  4,260,285	 (14,187,828)
	Increase in customers’ deposits			  7,527,791	 22,381,409
	Increase in margin accounts			  628,406	 2,469,355
	(Decrease) in other liabilities 			  (14,148,093)	 (19,065,901)

Net cash (used in) operating activities
before income tax			  (30,373,547)	 (4,071,442)

Income tax paid			  (4,384,470)	 (1,823,498)

Net cash (used in) operating activities			  (34,758,017)	 (5,894,940)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of held to maturity investments			  (1,994,543)	 -       
Purchase of available for sale investments			  (62,963,385)	 (27,352,942)
Sale of available for sale investments 			  24,615,296	 14,565,223
(Purchase) of premises and equipment			  (3,434,824)	 (757,900)
Sale of premises and equipment 			  289,112	 65,231
Purchase of intangible assets			  (609,426)	 (307,653)

Net cash (used in) investing activities			  (44,097,770)	 ( 13,788,041)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowing funds			  49,215,375	 -      
Repayment of loans and borrowings			  (1,576,761)	 (1,616,947)
Dividends paid 			  (6,770)	 (8,551)

Net cash from (used in) financing activities			  47,631,844	 (1,625,498)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 
and cash equivalents			  120,275	 129,015
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents			  (31,103,668)	 (21,179,464)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year			  90,645,268	 111,824,732

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year	 34	 59,541,600	   90,645,268
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measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments 
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, 
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. 

Trading investments 

These are initially recognised at cost and subsequently 
remeasured at fair value. All related realised and unrealised 
gains or losses in addition to the change in fair value related to 
translation of non-monetary assets in foreign currencies are taken 
to the income statement.

Interest earned is included in interest income and dividends 
received are included (as dividend income) in gains less losses 
arising from trading investments. 

Direct credit facilities 

Credit facilities are carried at amortised cost after allowance 
for credit losses, interest and commission in suspense.

Allowance for credit losses is made to cover impairment for 
direct credit facilities when there are one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of the facility that has an 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the facilities that 
can be reliably estimated. The provision for the impairment is 
recorded in the income statement.

Interest and commission of non-performing facilities are 
suspended when loans become impaired, such as when overdue 
by more than 90 days.

Loans provided for are written off from the allowance of 
credit losses when the collection procedures become ineffective. 
The excess in the allowance of possible loan losses, if any, is 
transferred to the statement of income, and cash recoveries of 
loans that were previously written off are credited to the income 
statement.

Available for sale investments 

These are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of 
consideration given including directly attributable transaction 
costs and subsequently remeasured at fair value.  Fair value 
changes are reported as a separate component of equity until 
the investment is derecognised or the investment is determined 
to be impaired. On derecognising or impairment the cumulative 
gain or loss previously reported as “cumulative change in fair 
value” within the equity, is included in the income statement. 

Held to maturity investments

These are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of 
consideration given including directly attributable transaction 
costs.

Investments classified as held to maturity with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturity are carried at 
amortized cost less a provision for impairment.

Fair value

For investments and derivatives quoted in an active market, 
fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices. Bid 
prices are used for assets and offer prices are used for liabilities.

For financial instruments where there is no active market, fair 

(1) General

Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) was established as a public 
shareholding company on January 21, 1990 in accordance with 
the Commercial Company’s Law No. (1) for the year 1989. Its 
registered office is at Amman.

The Bank provides its banking services through 12 branches 
and offices and its subsidiary company located in Jordan.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Bank’s 
Board of Directors in their meeting No. (1) held on February 21, 
2007.  These financial statements require the General Assembly’s 
approval.

(2) Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of the financial statements are set out below:

Basis of preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for 
the Bank and its subsidiary have been prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in 
conformity with the applicable laws and regulations of the Central 
Bank of Jordan.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared under the 
historical cost convention as modified for the measurement at fair 
value of derivatives and investment securities other than held to 
maturity investments.

The financial statements have been presented in Jordanian 
Dinars ”JD” which is the functional currency of the Bank.

Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies are consistent with those used in the 

previous year.

Main Accounting policies:

Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial 
statements of the Bank and its subsidiary where the Bank has the 
power to govern the financial and operating policies.

The subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, 
being the date on which the Bank obtains control, and continue 
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

There is one subsidiary which is Arab Co-operation Financial 
Investment Co. Ltd established on January 24, 1990, the Bank 
owned 100% of paid-in capital amounted to JD 15,600,000 as of 
December 31, 2006. The company’s main activities include asset 
management and brokerage in securities on behalf of its clients 
at the Amman Stock Exchange and abroad in addition to offering 
financial consulting services in connection with securities.

The financial statements of the subsidiary is prepared for the 
same reporting year as the Bank, using consistent accounting 
policies. 

All intra-company balances, transactions, income and expenses 
and profits and losses resulting from intra-company transactions 
that are recognised in assets, are eliminated in full.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the 
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Bank. The cost of an acquisition is 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 
(In Jordanian Dinars)
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End of service indemnity 

Provision for end of service indemnity is established by the 
bank to face any legal or contractual obligations at the end of 
employees’ services and is calculated based on the service terms 
as of the financial statements date.

Income Tax

- Current income tax is calculated based on the tax rates and 
laws that are applicable at the balance sheet date.

- Deferred income taxation is provided using the liability 
method on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date.  
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on laws that have been 
enacted at the balance sheet date. 

- The carrying values of deferred income tax assets are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to 
be utilised.

Fiduciary assets

Assets held in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of 
the Bank in the balance sheet.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the 
net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally 
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Bank 
intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously.

Revenue and expense recognition 

Interest income as well as fees which are considered an integral 
part of the effective yield of a financial asset, are recognised using 
the effective yield method, unless collectibility is in doubt.  The 
recognition of interest income is suspended when loans become 
impaired, such as when overdue by more than 90 days.  

Income from shares (dividend income) is recorded when right 
to receive payment is established.

Trade and settlement date accounting

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the 
trade date, i.e. the date that the Bank commits to purchase or 
sell the asset. 

Derivative financial instruments and hedge 
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on 
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured at their fair value. Hedges are classified as follows:

value is normally based on one of the following methods:
- Comparison with the current market value of a highly similar 

financial instrument.
- The expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable 

for items with similar terms and risk characteristics.
- Options pricing models.
The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, 

which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount 
payable on demand.

In case the fair value of an investment cannot be reliably 
measured, it is stated at cost or amortised cost and any impairment 
in the value is recorded in the income statement. 

Impairment of financial assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that a specific financial asset 
is impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment loss, is 
recognised in the income statement.

Impairment is determined as follows:
- For assets carried at amortised cost, impairment is based on 

estimated cash flows discounted at the original effective interest 
rate.

- For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference 
between the carrying value and fair value.

- For assets carried at cost, impairment is based on the present 
value of future cash flows discounted at the current market rate 
of return from a similar financial asset.

Impairment in value is recognised in the income statement. 
If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss 
decreases, the carrying value of the asset is increased to its 
recoverable amount. The amount of the reversal is recognised in 
the income statement except for equity instruments classified as 
available for sale investments.

Premises and equipment 

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation. 
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of premises and 
equipment, as follows:

		    		   %   	
Buildings			   2 - 15
Equipment and furniture 		 9 - 18
Vehicles			   15
Computers			   9 – 18
Leasehold improvements		 10

The carrying values of premises and equipment are reviewed 
for impairment when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any 
such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the 
estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to 
their recoverable amount, and the impairment is recorded in the 
income statement.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past event and 
the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and able to be 
reliably measured.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 

(In Jordanian Dinars)
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Intangible assets

- Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised 
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment when 
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

- Intangible assets includes computer software and 
programmes. These intangibles are amortised evenly over their 
estimated useful economic of 3 years.

Foreign currencies 

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are 
translated into JD at rates of exchange prevailing at the balance 
sheet date as issued by Central Bank of Jordan.  Any gains or 
losses are taken to the income statement. Transactions in foreign 
currencies are recorded in JD at exchange rate prevailing at the 
date of these transactions.

Translation gains or losses on non-monetary items carried 
at fair value are included in equity as part of the fair value 
adjustment on available-for-sale investments, unless it forms part 
of an effective hedging strategy.

Cash and cash equivalents 

Represents cash on hand and cash balances with banks and 
financial institutions including central banks that mature within 
three months, less banks and financial institutions deposits that 
mature within three months. 

(3) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of financial assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent liabilities.  These estimates and assumptions also 
affect the revenues and expenses and the resultant provisions 
as well as fair value changes reported in equity.  In particular, 
considerable judgment by management is required in the 
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when 
determining the level of provisions required for non-performing 
credit facilities.  Such estimates are necessarily based on 
assumptions about several factors involving varying degrees of 
judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ resulting 
in future changes in such provisions.

a) Provision for credit losses: The Bank reviews its loan 
portfolios to assess impairment based on Central Bank of Jordan 
instructions and International Financial Reporting Standards.

b) Impairment losses on collaterals acquired by the Bank are 
determined based on appraisal reports prepared by certified 
appraisers. Provisions are recognised when impairment is 
determined at the financial statements date individually and any 
impairment is recorded in the income statement. Valuation is 
performed on a regular basis.

c) Income tax is calculated based on the tax rates and laws 
that are applicable at the balance sheet date.

d) A periodic review is performed on assets estimated useful 
lives and assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed 
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 

e) Provision against lawsuits is provided for based on the 
Bank’s legal advisor opinion.

- Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated 
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income 
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the 
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, 
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for 
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit 
or loss over the period to maturity. The adjustment to the carrying 
amount of a hedged equity security remains in retained earnings 
until the disposal of the equity security.

- Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives 
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are 
recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective 
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

- Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted 
for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging 
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is 
recognised in equity; the gain or loss relating to the ineffective 
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement. Gains 
and losses accumulated in equity are included in the income 
statement when the foreign operation is disposed of.

- Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge 
accounting 

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge 
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument 
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised 
immediately in the income statement.

Derivative Financial Instruments held for trading 

Derivative financial instruments such as, foreign currencies 
forward deals, interest rate future deals, swaps, foreign currencies 
options and others, are initially recorded at cost as other assets/ 
liabilities, and subsequently carried at fair value in the balance 
sheet.

Repurchase and resale agreements 

Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase 
at a specified future date (repos) will continue to be recognised 
in the Bank’s financial statements due to the Bank’s continuing 
control over these assets using the same accounting policies.  
The proceeds of the sale are recorded as a liability in loans and 
borrowings item.  The difference between the sale and the 
repurchase price is recognised as an interest expense over the 
agreement term using the effective interest rate method.

Collateral pending sale

The Bank occasionally acquires real estate in settlement of 
certain loans and advances.  Such real estate is stated at the 
lower of the carrying value of the related loans and advances and 
the current fair value of such assets.  Gains or losses on disposal, 
and revaluation losses, are recognised in the income statement.
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(4) Cash And Balances With Central Banks

			        2006     	      2005
   
Cash on hand			  5,114,172	 4,067,937
Balances at Central Banks -
Term and notice deposits			  -       	 23,000,000
Statutory cash reserve			  19,444,198	 19,602,944
Certificates of deposit *			  24,998,649	 17,998,995

				   49,557,019	 64,669,876

* This item includes a restricted amount of JD 14,000,000 against Repurchase Agreement with Central Bank of Jordan as of 
December 31, 2006.  (note 17). This item also includes an amount of JD 14,998,979 which matures within three to six months as 
of December 31, 2006. 

(5) Balances At Banks And Financial Institutions

		                       	Local Banks and	                     	Foreign Banks and	                             Total
	  	                   	Financial Institutions                   	Financial Institutions         	                                 	
	    		  2006	 2005	 2006	 2005	 2006	 2005     

Current and demand deposits		  97,683	 79,509	 9,044,269	 8,002,685	 9,141,952	 8,082,194
Deposits maturing in three
months or less		  2,127,000	 5,000,000	111,294,584	 58,538,599	 113,421,584	 63,538,599

		 	 2,224,683	 5,079,509	120,338,853	 66,541,284	 122,563,536	 71,620,793

Non interest bearing balances at banks and financial institutions amounted to JD 2,098,028 and JD 2,898,797  as of December 31, 
2006 and 2005, respectively.
No restricted cash balances as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

(6) Deposits At Banks And Financial Institutions

		                       	Local Banks and	                     	Foreign Banks and	                             Total
	  	                   	Financial Institutions                   	Financial Institutions         	                                 	
	    		  2006	 2005	 2006	 2005	 2006	 2005     

Term deposits maturing
after one year 	     	  -       	      -       	1,169,850	 1,882,311	 1,169,850	 1,882,311

		   	    -       	      -       	1,169,850	 1,882,311	 1,169,850	 1,882,311

(7) Trading Investments
	
			        2006     	      2005
   
Quoted securities			  28,000	 -     
Managed funds			  111,749	 240,470

				   139,749	 240,470
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(8) Direct Credit Facilities, Net

			        2006     	      2005
   
Discounted bills and notes *			  5,081,077	 3,070,783
Overdrafts **			  70,884,687	 54,569,725
Loans and advances ***			  171,644,118	 162,334,783
Credit cards			  3,865,857	    2,604,021
				   251,475,739	 222,579,312
Less: Suspended interest			  (7,459,880)	 (8,298,637)
Provision for credit losses			  (5,905,133)	 (8,152,369)

	Direct credit facilities, net			  238,110,726	 206,128,306

*	Discounted bills are net of interest and commission received in advance amounted to JD 158,077 and JD 29,899 as of December 
31, 2006 and 2005 respectively.
**	Overdrafts are net of interest and commission received in advance amounted to JD 38,575 and JD 40,554 as of December 31, 
2006 and 2005 respectively.
***	Loans and advances net of interest and commission received in advance amounted to JD 798,481 and JD 540,262 as of 
December 31, 2006 and 2005.

All credit facilities are granted to customers in Jordan.

The Composition Of The Credit Facilities Portfolio Is As Follows:

			        2006     	      2005
   
Agriculture			  1,150,039	 872,641
Manufacturing and mining			  25,138,662	 24,907,751
Constructions			  20,234,302	 16,928,561
General trade			  34,124,068	 23,072,066
Transportation services			  2,155,776	 336,954
Tourism, hotels and restaurants			  2,441,074	 2,595,525
Services and public facilities 			  29,606,548	 29,461,951
Financial services			  8,373,870	 1,405,783
Investment in shares			  33,499,115	 22,510,268
Real estate			  42,257,303	 38,631,287
Vehicles			  5,533,410	 2,119,081
Consumer goods			  37,418,086	 29,817,202
Others			      9,543,486	   29,920,242

				   251,475,739	 222,579,312
	
Direct Credit Facilities According To Segments:

			        2006     	      2005
   
Public sector			  30,954,892	 35,521,072
Private sector –
	Companies and establishments			  106,889,147	 98,072,283
	Individuals			  113,631,700	   88,985,957

				   251,475,739	 222,579,312

Non-performing credit facilities amounted to JD 11,163,468 (2005: JD 13,878,752), representing 4.44% (2005:6.24%) of total 
facilities granted.
Non-performing credit facilities; net of suspended interest, amounted to JD 5,207,055 (2005: JD 7,601,309), representing 2.11% 
(2005: 3.54%) of total facilities granted after excluding the suspended interest.
Total credit facilities granted and guaranteed by the Government of Jordan, amounted to JD 24,156,418 (2005: JD 27,341,642), 
representing 9.61% (2005: 12.28%) of total facilities granted.
The Direct facilities granted against real estate collateral amounted to JD 65,766,077 and JD 55,278,215 as of December 31, 2006 
and 2005, respectively.
The gross fair value of collaterals held against credit facilities amounted to JD 148,443,976 and JD 152,995,870 as of December 31, 
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 
(In Jordanian Dinars)



ABC Jordan Annual Report 2006

29

The Movement on Provision for Credit Losses was as Follows: 	
	
			        2006     	      2005
   
At January 1,			  8,152,369	 12,636,972
Excess transferred to income during the year			  (2,213,617)	 (3,843,721)
Credit facilities write off 			  (33,619)	 (685,882)
Transferred from Banking risk provision	      	 -      	       45,000

At December 31,			  5,905,133	 8,152,369

Non-performing credit facilities that were settled or collected amounted to JD 2,479,495 and   JD 5,197,709 as of December 31, 
2006 and 2005 respectively.

The Movement on Suspended Interest was as Follows:
	  
			        2006     	      2005
   
At January 1			  8,298,637	 7,954,163
Suspended interest during the year			  1,142,786	 1,307,878
Amount transferred to income			  (1,373,497)	 (595,244)
Amounts written off			  (608,046)	 (368,160)

At December 31,			  7,459,880	 8,298,637

(9) Available For Sale Investments

			        2006     	      2005
   
Quoted Investments	

Corporate debt securities			  10,679,615	 4,168,794
Other debt securities 			  2,960,075	 2,995,525
Equity			    5,913,679	   4,783,165

Total quoted investments			  19,553,369	 11,947,484

Unquoted Investments

Treasury bills			  12,224,278	 -       
Guaranteed government debt securities  *			  42,528,352	 24,307,377
Equity			    3,841,084	   1,674,830

Total unquoted investments			  58,593,714	 25,982,207

Total investments			  78,147,083	 37,929,691

Analysis of debt instruments:

			        2006     	      2005
   
Fixed rate			  63,315,880	 24,661,045
Floating rate			    5,076,440	   6,810,651

				   68,392,320	 31,471,696

Included in unquoted equities are investments carried at cost with value of JD 1,014,052 and JD 1,674,830 as of December 31, 
2006 and 2005 respectively. 
*	This item includes an amount of JD 16,000,000 as of December 31, 2006 which is restricted against repurchase agreement with 
Central Bank of Jordan (Note 17).
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(10) Held to Maturity Investments, Net
	
			        2006     	      2005
   
Unquoted Investments

Treasury bills			  1,994,543	 -       	

				   1,994,543	 -  

(11) Premises And Equipment, Net

			   	 Equipment
				     Furniture			     Leasehold
2006 -	     Land      	   Buildings  	 and Fixtures	 Vehicles	 Computers	 improvements	    Total   
COST -

At January 1,	 594,235	 6,026,600	 2,296,964	 233,457	 1,803,001	 1,595,754	 12,550,011
Additions	 920,700	 1,079,300	 331,968	 240,740	 262,722	 523,482	 3,358,912
Disposals	          -      	        -        	(192,761)	       -      	 (10,402)	 (181,125)	 (384,288)

At December 31,	 1,514,935	 7,105,900	 2,436,171	 474,197	 2,055,321	 1,938,111	 15,524,635

Accumulated Depreciation -

At January 1,	  	 1,639,859	 1,538,719	 215,500	 1,049,783	 865,756	  5,309,617
Provided during the year	 -	 201,220	 215,498	 25,412	 292,483	 123,834	 858,447
Disposals	         -     	        -       	(168,182)	       -      	 ( 10,288)	 (148,007)	 (326,477)

At  December 31,	         -     	 1,841,079	 1,586,035	 240,912	 1,331,978	    841,583	 5,841,587

Net book value	 1,514,935	 5,264,821	 850,136	 233,285	 723,343	 1,096,528	 9,683,048
Payments on account to 
purchase fixed assets	       -      	           -       	    26,912	       -      	          -      	     49,000	      75,912

Net Book Value at 
December 31, 2006	 1,514,935	   5,264,821	   877,048	 233,285	    723,343	 1,145,528	 9,758,960

2005 -
COST -

At January 1,	 594,235	 6,013,750	 2,367,465	 319,689	 1,519,950	 1,601,055	 12,416,144
Additions	 -	 12,850	 22,529	 4,600	 315,186	 171,434	 526,599
Disposals	      -       	           -       	 (93,030)	 (90,832)	 (32,135)	 (176,735)	 (392,732)

At December 31,	 594,235	 6,026,600	 2,296,964	 233,457	 1,803,001	 1,595,754	 12,550,011

Accumulated Depreciation -

At January 1,	 -	 1,450,219	 1,436,699	 251,063	 825,192	 891,492	 4,854,665
Provided during the year	 -	 189,640	 220,177	 26,393	 225,764	 120,479	 782,453
Disposals	       -      	           -       	(118,157)	 (61,956)	 (1,173)	 (146,215)	 (327,501)

At  December 31,	      -       	1,639,859	 1,538,719	 215,500	 1,049,783	 865,756	  5,309,617

Net book value	 594,235	 4,386,741	 758,245	 17,957	 753,218	 729,998	 7,240,394

Payments on account to 
purchase fixed assets	        -     	      48,315	      44,588	        -     	    80,373	    58,026	    231,302

Net Book Value at 
December 31, 2005	 594,235	 4,435,056	    802,833	   17,957	    833,591	   788,024	 7,471,696

*	Fully depreciated premises and equipment amounted to JD 3,783,516 and JD 2,249,233 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, 
respectively.
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(12) Intangible Assets

		                                                    Computer Softwares and Programs
			   2006    	       2005      	

At January 1,			  713,147	 623,374
Additions			  609,427	 307,653
Amortised during the year			  (250,438)	 (217,880)

At December 31,			  1,072,136	 713,147

(13) Other Assets

	      		  2006    	       2005      	

Accrued interest and revenue			  1,726,819	 1,121,534
Cheques under collection			  4,663,555	 5,705,497
Prepaid expenses			  328,448	 292,142
Collateral pending sale			  1,410,368	 1,883,871
Customers debit balances in subsidiary company			  3,635,491	 7,232,135
Others			    3,308,528	   3,713,315

Total			  15,073,209	 19,948,494

The movement on collateral pending sale was as follows:

	    		    2006    	       2005      	

At January 1,			  1,883,871	 2,107,109
Additions			  188,934	 186,724
Disposals			  (662,437)	 (409,962)

At December 31,			  1,410,368	 1,883,871

(14) Banks and Financial Institutions’ Deposits

				   2006			   2005                         	
			  Inside	 Outside	  	  Inside	   Outside		
			  Jordan  	 Jordan	 Total   	   Jordan  	    Jordan   	    Total  
 	
Current accounts and
demand deposits		  2,119,270	 7,313,401	 9,432,671	 1,419,892	 21,767,755	 23,187,647

Deposits - 

Maturing within 
3 months		  16,149,015	 71,998,290	 88,147,305	 1,110,356	 21,347,401	 22,457,757

Total		  18,268,285	 79,311,691	 97,579,976	 2,530,248	 43,115,156	 45,645,404
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(15) Customers’ Deposits

	      		  2006    	       2005      	

Current and demand deposits			  66,249,416	 65,908,682
Saving deposits			  10,892,740	 9,529,662
Time and notice deposits			  174,346,150	 168,522,171
	
				   251,488,306	 243,960,515

Governmental institutions’ deposits amounted to JD 17,172,817 representing 6.83% of total deposits and JD 30,563,854 
representing 12.53% of total deposits as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Non-interest bearing deposits amounted to JD 48,888,154 representing 19.44% of total deposits and JD 42,244,602 representing 
17.32% of total deposits as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
Restricted deposits amounted to JD 5,523,181 representing 2.20% of total deposits and JD 3,573,110 representing 1.47% of total 
deposits as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively.
Dormant accounts amounted to JD 3,773,938 and JD 2,811,006 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively.

(16) Margin Accounts
	    
	      		  2006    	       2005      	

Direct credit facilities			  19,179,387	 17,463,839
Indirect credit facilities			  8,442,389	 7,859,864
Deposits against cash margin dealings facilities			  2,126,383	 4,138,659
Others			      432,357	       89,748
	
				   30,180,516	 29,552,110

(17) Loans and Borrowings

				                  Number of installments
			   Amount	 Total	 Net due yet	 Repayments	 Security	 Interest rate
2006 -
Real Estate Mortgage		  16,230,766	 445	 329	 Variable	 Mortgage	 7.778%
Refinance Company						      deeds

Local Banks		  11,215,375				    -	 7%-8.15%	
Repurchase agreement*		  30,000,000				    Certificate of	 8.5%
							      deposits and
							     treasury bonds	
			  57,446,141					   

2005-
Central Bank of
Jordan		  314,080	 2	 2	 Variable	 Bills of	 5%
							      collections
Real Estate Mortgage		
Refinance Company		  9,493,447	 444	 369	 Variable	 Mortgage	 5.766%
							      deeds
			  9,807,527

At December 31, 2006, borrowed funds which were re-lent to customers amounted to JD 16,230,766 (2005: JD 7,807,527) at an 
average interest rate of 8.648% (2005: 6.464%)
*	This amount represents borrowed funds from Central Bank of Jordan against repurchase agreement with interest rate of 8.5%.
Borrowed funds from Central Bank of Jordan are guaranteed by certificate of deposits (Note 4) and treasury bonds (Note 9).
Borrowed funds from Central Bank of Jordan were repaid on January 6, 2007.
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(18) Sundry Provisions

			  Balance at		 Provided during	 Used during		  Balance at
			  January 1		  the year	 the year		  December 31

2006 -

Provision for end of service
indemnity		  29,264		  -	 (29,264)	 -
Lawsuits provision		  15,500		  -	 -		  15,500
Others		  107,228		  -	 -		  107,228

			  151,992		  -	 (29,264)		  122,728

2005 -

Provision for end of service
indemnity		  44,545		  18,358	 (33,639)		  29,264
Lawsuits provision		  15,500		  -	 -		  15,500
Others		  107,228		  -	 -		  107,228
			  167,273		  18,358	 (33,639)		  151,992

(19) Income Tax 

A) Income Tax Liabilities

The movement on income tax provision was as follows:

	      		  2006   	       2005      	

At January 1,			  4,503,342	 1,671,994
Income tax paid 			  (4,365,099)	 (1,849,426)
Provision for income tax for the year 			  4,960,687	 4,666,061
Income tax rebates 			  -       	       25,928
Amortization of deferred taxes			  (114,345)	 (11,215)
Prior years income tax			  (19,371)	 -       	

At December 31,			  4,965,214	 4,503,342

Income tax appearing in the statement of income represents the following:

Provision for income tax for the year			  4,664,258	 4,513,688
Accrued income tax from previous years			     296,429	     152,373

				   4,960,687	 4,666,061

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 

(In Jordanian Dinars)



ABC Jordan Annual Report 2006

34

B) Deferred Tax Assets:

					    2006			   2005
			  Begining	 Amounts	 Amounts	 Ending	 Deferred	 Deferred
			  balance	 released	 added	 balance	 tax	 tax

Provision for loan losses		  219,133	 (26,701)	 -	 192,432	 67,351	 76,696
Suspended Interest		  300,000	 (300,000)	 -	 -	 -	 105,000

			  519,133	 (326,701)	 -	 192,432	 67,351	 181,696

The movement on deferred tax assets was as follows:
	      		  2006    	       2005      	

At January 1,			  181,696	 192,911
Released			  (114,345)	 (11,215)

At December 31, 			  67,351	 181,696

C) The Reconciliation Between The Taxable Profit And The Accounting Profit Is As Follows:

	      		  2006    	       2005      	

Accounting profit			  15,951,935	 16,527,404
Non- taxable income			  (2,042,288)	 (2,271,512)
Disallowed expense 	     	 171,618	     553,662

Taxable profit			  14,081,265	 14,809,554

Effective rate of income tax			  31%	 27%
Statutory tax rate			  35%	 35%

The Bank settled its income tax till 2004.
The Income Tax Department has reviewed the Banks records for the year 2005 and did not reach a final settlement yet.
As for the subsidiary company, its income tax was settled till 2004.
The Income Tax Department has not reviewed the subsidiary company for the year 2005.

(20) Other Liabilities

	      		  2006    	       2005      	

Accrued interest expenses 			  829,075	 401,043
Credit balances			  5,487,499	 14,339,259
Accrued expenses			  1,072,120	 3,838,673
Negative fair value of derivatives (Note 35)			  44,375	 152,652
Certified checks			  1,307,903	 2,276,853
Universities fees			  116,900	 170,049
Scientific research and vocational training			  116,900	 170,051
Technical, vocational education and training support fund fees			  95,203	 58,083
Board of directors remuneration			  49,167	 39,167
Incoming transfers			  338,315	 231,017
Others			      632,453	   2,567,923

				   10,089,910	 24,244,770
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(21) Paid in capital

The Board of Directors approved in its meeting held on February 21, 2007 the increase in capital by JD 11,212,500 representing 
25% of the authorized and issued capital by adding  JD 8,970,000 from retained earnings and JD 2,242,500 from voluntary reserve. 
This increase distributed as stock dividend.

The General Assembly approved in its extraordinary meeting held on April 2, 2006, the increase in capital by JD 10,350,000 by 
distributing stock dividends which representing 30% of the authorized and issued capital. 

The paid in capital amounted to JD 44,850,000 and divided to 44,850,000 shares at JD 1 per share and JD 34,500,000 and divided 
to 34,500,000 shares at JD 1 per share as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The General Assembly approved in its extraordinary meeting held on April 3, 2005, the increase in capital by JD 6,900,000 by 
distributing stock dividends representing 20% of the authorized and issued capital.

(22)	 Reserves

Statutory Reserve –

As required by the Law, 10% of the profit before tax and fees is transferred to the statutory reserve. The Bank may resolve 
to discontinue such annual transfers when the reserve equals the paid in capital. This reserve is not available for distribution to 
shareholders

Voluntary reserve

Voluntary reserve represents the transfers equivalent to a maximum of 20% of income before tax and fees. This reserve can be 
fully or partially utilised upon the approval of the Board of Directors, and is distributable to shareholders.

General banking risk reserve

This reserve is appropriated from retained earnings in compliance with the regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan.

The use of the following reserves is restricted by law:

         Description                  	    Amount    	 Restriction Law		

Statutory reserve	 7,004,848	 Bank’s Law
General banking risk reserve	 2,099,960	 Central Bank of Jordan 		
				   regulations
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(23) Cumulative Change In Fair Values

		     	    	                 Available for sale investments         	 Hedge
		   		  Shares  	  Bonds 	 Funds	 derivatives	      Total 

2006 -    	
	
At January 1,			   (281,776)	 (1,394,810)	 (6,431)	 (150,308)	 (1,833,325)
Hedge derivatives valuation difference			   -     	 -      	 -    	 -     	 -      
Unrealised gains (losses)			   1,398,787	 716,606	 18,371	 114,858	 2,248,622
Realised gain transferred to
income statement			   (357,990)	 (9,389)	 (11,940)	       -     	(379,319)
 
At December 31,			      759,021	   (687,593)	       -     	 (  35,450)	     35,978

2005 -

At January 1,			   15,453	 115,695	 -     	 -     	 131,148
Hedge derivatives valuation difference			   -     	 -       	 -     	 (150,308)	 (150,308)
Unrealised gains (losses)			   1,391,775	 (1,535,320)	 (6,431)	 -     	(149,976)
Realised gain transferred to
income statement			   (1,689,004)	       24,815	         -     	         -     	(1,664,189)
 
At December 31,			   (281,776)	 (1,394,810)	 (6,431)	 (150,308)	 (1,833,325)

(24) Retained Earnings
	      
	      		  2006    	       2005      	

At January 1,			  10,586,929	 7,541,731
Profit for the year			  10,991,248	 11,861,343
Transferred to statutory reserve and 
general banking risk reserve			  (2,101,086)	 (1,916,145)
Transferred to Increase in capital			  (10,350,000)	 (6,900,000)	

At December 31,	  	  9,127,091	 10,586,929

The retained earnings include an amount of JD 67,351 and JD 181,696 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively, which 
represents deferred tax assets that is not available for distribution in accordance with Central Bank of Jordan regulations.
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(25) Interest Income

	      		  2006    	       2005      	

Direct Credit Facilities -

Discounted bills and notes			  234,009	 167,901
Overdrafts			  2,432,687	 1,795,020
Loans and advances			  13,728,815	 10,129,598
Credit cards			  650,554	 406,702

Balances at the Central Banks			  2,060,440	 1,688,468
Balances and deposits at banks and financial institutions			  4,101,657	 1,952,003
Trading investments			  10,857	 14,688
Available for sale investments			  3,419,250	 1,795,532
Held to maturity investments			  114,603	 -     
Interest received on interest rate swap contracts			  631,158	 381,032
Interest received on margin trading financing for  
subsidiary’s customers 	  	  3,228,895	   1,964,282

				   30,612,925	 20,295,226

(26) Interest Expense and Similar Charges

	      		  2006    	       2005      	

Banks and financial institutions deposits			  4,542,742	 1,103,428

Customers’ Deposits -

Current accounts and demand deposits			  167,479	 119,237
Saving deposits			  248,848	 186,387
Time and notice deposits 			  7,585,850	 4,860,246

Cash margins			  917,568	 679,741
Loans and borrowings			  1,157,756	 598,205
Deposits Guarantee Corporation fees			  388,364	 328,857
Interest paid on interest rate swap contracts	    	   612,850	    500,262

				   15,621,457	 8,376,363

(27) Net Commission Income 

			        2006     	      2005
   
Commission Income -
	Direct credit facilities			  788,885	 528,799
	Indirect credit facilities			  1,173,575	 1,153,913
Less: Commission expense			  (39,254)	 (10,232)

				   1,923,206	 1,672,480
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(28) Gains Less Losses Arising From Trading Investments

			  Realised 	  	 Dividend	 Unrealised	
			  gain (loss)		  income	 gain (loss)	 Total
2006-

Treasury bills and debt 
securities		  (21,941)		  -      	 (2,173)	 (24,114)
Managed funds		  648,909		       -      	 (89,213)	 559,696

Total		  626,968	      	 -      	 (91,386)	 535,582

2005-

Treasury bills and debt 
securities		  (4,925)		  -     	 -     	 (4,925)
Equities		  22,374		  -     	 -     	 22,374
Managed funds		  (184,297)	      	   -     	        -     	 (184,297)

Total		  (166,848)	     	    -     	        -     	 (166,848)

(29) Gains Arising From Available For Sale Investments

			        2006     	      2005
   
Dividend income			  278,733	 242,365
Gain from sale of available for sale investments			  379,319	 1,664,189

				   658,052	 1,906,554

(30) Other Income

			        2006     	      2005
   
Brokerage commission			  4,878,123	 9,472,034
Visa card income			  634,783	 512,107
Management and consulting fees			  37,512	 327,778
Transfers commission			  192,484	 179,436
Recovery of written off debts			  742,234	 105,649
Capital gain			  1,018,897	 43,228
Rent revenue			  26,525	 26,694
Returned cheques commission			  28,528	 22,583
Others			     364,733	    265,148

				   7,923,819	 10,954,657
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(31) Employees’ Costs

			        2006     	      2005
   
Salaries and benefits			  4,110,592	 3,479,176
Employees’ bonuses			  789,921	 3,736,637
Social security contribution			  427,984	 330,837
Medical expenses			  185,325	 187,128
Training expenses			  37,994	 80,543
Per diem			  55,329	 19,750
Others	  	   247,361	    187,395

				   5,854,506	 8,021,466

(32) Other Expenses

			        2006     	      2005
   
Duties and Licenses			  605,495	 535,443
Computer expenses			  344,786	 201,967
Advertising expenses			  741,856	 805,590
Travel expenses			  74,022	 90,121
Communication			  424,393	 400,790
Head office expenses – Bahrain			  141,800	 389,950
Rent			  512,721	 418,082
Board of Directors’ expenses			  278,149	 185,758
Printing and stationery			  351,049	 218,746
Borrowers’ transactions expenses			  257,312	 222,877
Consultation expenses			  179,668	 91,153
Subscriptions and magazines			  8,035	 10,381
Professional fees			  170,029	 123,753
Board of Directors’ remuneration			  45,000	 35,000
Jordanian universities fees			  116,900	 170,051
Scientific research and vocational training fees			  116,900	 170,051
Technical, vocational education and
 training support fund fees			  94,359	 102,635
Other expenses	  	   929,523	 1,078,138

				   5,391,997	 5,250,486

(33) Basic Earnings Per Share
	

			        2006     	      2005
   
Profit for the year			  10,991,248	 11,861,343
Weighted average number of shares			  44,850,000	 44,850,000

Basic earnings per share                                                                                                  0.245	                         0.264

Diluted earning per share is equal to basic earning per share.
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(34) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent balances appearing in the cash flow statement consist of the following balance sheet items:

			        2006     	      2005
   
Cash and balances with Central Banks 
maturing within 3 months			  34,558,040	 64,669,879
Add: Balances at banks and financial institutions
maturing within 3 months			  122,563,536	 71,620,793
Less: Banks and financial institutions’ deposits
maturing within 3 months			  (97,579,976)	 (45,645,404)	

Net cash and cash equivalents 			  59,541,600	 90,645,268

(35) Derivatives

The table below shows the positive and negative fair values of derivative financial instruments together with the par value 
amounts analysed by the term to maturity.

				                      			  Par Value Maturity
	   	 Positive	 Negative	 Total par	   Within 3	   3 - 12	 1 - 3	   over
		 Fair Value	 Fair Value	     Value    	    Months   	 Months	 Years	 3 Years

2006 – (Thousands of JD)	
Derivatives held for trading	 -     	 9	 12,444	 12,444	 -    	 -    	 -    
Derivatives held for cash flow hedge:
Interest rate swap contract	 -     	 35	 9,926	 -    	 -    	 -    	 9,926

2005 – (Thousands of JD)
Derivatives held for trading	 -     	 2	 3,847	 3,847	 -   	 -   	 -  
Derivatives held for cash flow hedge: 
Interest rate swap contract	 -     	 150	 9,926	 -    	 -   	 -    	 9,926

The par values indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at the year end and are neither indicative of the market risk nor 
the credit risk.			 
The bank has entered in interest rate swap contract as hedging instrument against DIJAF bond, (which has fixed interest rate) to 
encounter any increase in interest rates. 

(36) Related Party Transactions

The Bank enters into transactions with major shareholders, directors, senior management and their related concerns in the 
ordinary course of business at commercial interest and commission rates.  All the loans and advances to related parties are performing 
advances and are free of any provision for credit losses.
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	                                                                                            Related Parties
			  Parent and
			  affiliated		  Bank’s
			  companies		  Employees	 2006	 2005

Balance Sheet Items:

Direct credit facilities		  -		  2,400,021	 2,400,021	 2,162,314
Deposits at banks and
financial institutions		  63,486,904		  -	 63,486,904	 30,768,991
Customer deposits		  -		  909,796	 909,796	 713,045
Available for sale investments		  2,960,075		  -	 2,960,075	 2,995,525

Off- Balance Sheet Items:

Letter of Guarantee		  11,459,186		  -	 11,459,186	 5,288,403
Interest rate swap contracts		  9,926,000		  -	 9,926,000	 9,926,000

Income Statement Items:

Interest and commission income 		  2,709,198		  83,033	 2,792,231	 1,569,505
Interest and commission expense		  (761,618)		  (20,429)	 (782,047)	 (711,089)

Compensation of the key management personnel is as follows:
	
			        2006     	      2005
   
Benefits (Salaries, wages, and bonuses) for senior
executive management level			  749,798	 3,848,500	

(37) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are included on the balance sheet and consist of cash, balances with banks and central banks, direct credit 
facilities, other financial assets, customers and banks’ deposits, and other financial liabilities.

As disclosed in Note (9), included in available for sale investments, unquoted financial instruments disclosed at cost amounting to 
JD 1,014,052 and JD 1,687,624 as at December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively.

(38) 	Risk Management

The Arab Banking Corporation has a conservative policy towards all kinds of risks, and as such, operates by utilizing a set of 
advanced risk-control systems to keep risk low without disturbing the risk-profitability equation. The Bank’s Risk Management 
practices are very cautious, taking into consideration developments that arise as a result of abiding by banking laws and regulations. 
The risk management bodies of the Bank include: the Board of Directors, the General Manager, various committees including the 
Executive Committee, the Assets and Liabilities Committee and the Risks Committee which includes members from the bank’s Board 
of Directors, one member of the Credit Committee from the Parent Corporation in Bahrain, the Bank’s General Manager and the 
Manager of the Credit Committee.

The illustrations from (39) to (44) show the most significant banking risks facing the bank and the management methods utilized 
to address such risks. 
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(39) Credit Risks and Concentration of Assets and Liabilities

Credit Risks are risks arising from the default or failure of the other party of the financial agreement to meet its obligations towards 
the Bank, which may result in Bank losses. The ABC Bank adopts a method of dividing the credit facilities portfolio into several 
categories that include credit facilities provided to big, small and medium-sized companies, in addition to retail facilities that comprise 
personal loans, housing loans and other products such as credit cards and personal cars loans. Since the Bank operates within the 
network of the Arab Banking Corporation (Bahrain), the Parent Corporation has strengthened credit monitoring by devising credit 
policies for each kind of facility (the facilities of big, small and medium-sized companies and retail facilities). These policies include 
rules and procedures that are followed when granting or renewing the facilities, as well as a special evaluation for clients according 
to their credit ratings based on Moody’s Risk Advisor evaluation model, which automatically rates the facilities of the big companies, 
and also on the Credit Scoring Model to evaluate listed clients in the small companies and/or retail.

Given the importance of credit risks, the Credit Department at the Parent Corporation in Bahrain has developed a special system 
to calculate the Risk Adjusted Return on Capital (RAROC) which takes into consideration the facility type and the credit rating degree 
in pricing credit facilities. The accepted minimum level has been set at 15%, otherwise a withdrawal policy from the credit facilities 
should be devised. 

The facilities portfolio of the bank is supervised and managed by several credit committees.  Three higher committees are composed 
of the members of the Board of Directors of the ABC (Jordan); a fourth committee consists of the members of the management of 
ABC (Jordan).  The Credit Facilities committee includes department managers from ABC (Jordan); as well as the Chief Executive Officer, 
and a secondary committee reviews the small facilities of less than JD 100,000.  The powers of every committee have been defined 
based on client credit evaluation and the period of the granted credit facility.

The bank also follows a policy of diversification at the client level, economic sectors and geographic areas, which helps reduce 
the level of credit and market risks. To monitor lending risks, the Risk Management Committee holds periodic meetings to discuss all 
issues related to credit risks. This committee receives quarterly reports concerning the distribution of the facilities portfolio in regards 
to economic distribution, credit rating, geographic distribution and their maturities. In addition to this, provision for credit losses 
within the total credit facilities value is periodically reviewed. 

The details of the Direct Credit Facilities portfolio are demonstrated in note (8), while the bank’s off balance sheet commitments 
vulnerable to credit risks are demonstrated in note (48). 

The bank limits the concentration of assets and liabilities into any one area by distributing its activities throughout many sectors 
and in several geographic areas both inside and outside the Kingdom. 

The distribution of assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet items by geographic region and industry sector was as follows: 

- By Geographical Area -

	                             			   2006                             	                            2005      		
				     Liabilities	 Off Balance		     Liabilities	 Off Balance
	    		   Assets    	   and equity   	 Sheet Items	     Assets    	   and equity   	 Sheet Items

Inside Jordan		  399,979,260	399,872,500	 96,254,213	 337,240,361	 350,617,214	 79,428,205
Other Arab countries		  45,749,752	103,931,882	 42,588,374	 35,514,257	 49,878,867	 14,977,146
Europe		  59,719,679	 12,650,229	 4,413,676	 36,104,430	 5,191,229	 8,247,033
Asia   *		  91,055	 59,388	 9,739,112	 249,646	 60,006	 -       
Africa *		  -       	 177,169	 1,433,491	 84,679	 3,421,849	 7,150,467
America		  11,992,812	 933,520	 6,174,619	 814,596	 1,572,908	 7,812,504
Others	    	     121,604	          29,474	          - 	 778,511	           44,407	            -

Total		  517,654,162	517,654,162	160,603,485	 410,786,480	 410,786,480	 117,615,355
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-	By Segment -

	                           			     2006			   2005
				       Liabilities	 Off Balance		     Liabilities	 Off Balance
	  		     Assets    	   and equity   	 Sheet Items	     Assets    	   and equity   	 Sheet Items

Public Sector		  132,212,262	 52,138,031	 -	 120,612,084	 35,381,276	 -       
Private Sector
Corporate accounts	 	 256,508,127	245,219,998	155,207,575	 184,980,866	 141,976,036	 110,286,042
Retail accounts	 	 112,988,505	154,514,762	 5,395,910	 92,940,749	 180,508,877	 7,329,313
Others		    15,945,268	   65,781,371	          -	 12,252,781	 52,920,291	         -         

Total	 	 517,654,162	517,654,162	160,603,485	 410,786,480	 410,786,480	 117,615,355

* Excluding Arab Countries.

(40) Market Risk

Market risk arises from fluctuation of interest rates, exchange rates and share prices. The process of monitoring and managing 
market risk is performed at various levels of the bank, including the Treasury Management Department, Financial Control Department, 
Credit Department and several other committees, namely the Assets and Liabilities Committee and Risk Management Committee 
which consists of several members of the bank’s Board of Directors. Market risk is included in the activities of the bank’s Treasury 
Department, in addition to the activities of the subsidiary company, the Arab Co-operation financial investments Co. LTD.

Treasury Department activities involve deposits in the banks and banking institutions, financial assets, foreign currency exchange, 
interest SWAP contracts and certificates of deposits. The activities of the subsidiary company involve managing client portfolios, 
financing the process of purchasing shares for the clients including margin financing. The bank periodically monitors the subsidiary 
company’s activities by producing weekly reports containing the details of the company’s activities, the managed portfolios, the 
brokerage commission and the margin financing percentage. The Bank’s Credit Department periodically receives these reports to 
ensure the Bank’s compliance with the instructions of the monitoring authorities in this regard.

(41) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future profitability or the fair values of financial 
instruments.  The Bank is exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches of interest rate repricing of assets and liabilities.  The 
Bank has established levels of interest rate risk by setting limits on the interest rate gaps for stipulated periods in accordance with 
the risk management strategy.
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The Bank’s interest sensitivity position based on contractual repricing arrangements or maturity at December 31, 2006 and 2005 is 
shown in the following tables:
Sensitivity of interest rates as of December 31, 2006
							      		  Average
	  	 1 - 3	 3 - 6	 6 - 12	 1 - 3	 Over	 Zero-interest		  interest
		    Months   	  Months 	  Months	  Years  	 3 years	 Elements	    Total   	    rate    
									           %
ASSETS - 
(Thousands of JDs)

Cash and balances 
with Central Banks	 10,000	 14,999	 -    	 -    	 -    	 24,558	 49,557	 3.61
Balances at Banks and 
financial institutions	 120,466	 -    	 -    	 -    	 -    	 2,098	 122,564	 4.17
Deposits at Banks and 
financial institutions	 -     	 -     	 -    	 106	 1,064	 -     	 1,170	 3.35
Trading investments	 -     	 -     	 -    	 -    	 -    	 140	 140	 -
Direct credit 
facilities, net	 51,975	 24,642	 57,149	 42,870	 61,474	 -     	 238,110	 8.8
Available for sale 
investments	 7,888	 2,960	 9,554	 25,917	 22,073	 9,755	 78,147	 5.89
Held to maturity, net 	 1,995	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 1,995	 7.06
Premises and 
equipment, net	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 9,759	 9,759	 -
Intangible assets	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 1,072	 1,072	 -
Deferred tax assets	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 67	 67	 -
Other assets 	     3,034	       -     	       -     	       -     	       -     	 12,039	   15,073	       9.5	
 
Total Assets	 195,358	 42,601	 66,703	 68,893	 84,611	 59,488	 517,654	     -     	

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(Thousands of JDs)

Liabilities -

Banks and financial 
institutions’ deposits	 97,580	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 97,580	 5.88
Customers’ deposits	 198,057	 863	 3,110	 -     	 570	 48,888	 251,488	 3.39
Margin accounts	 8,652	 -     	 54	 409	 16,130	 4,936	 30,181	 3.07
Loans and borrowings	 41,695	 189	 606	 10,508	 4,448	 -     	 57,446	 7.78
Sundry provisions	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 123	 123	 -    
Income tax liabilities	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 4,965	 4,965	 -    
Other liabilities	         -     	       -     	       -     	       -     	         -     	   10,090	   10,090	       -    

Total Liabilities	 345,984	 1,052	 3,770	 10,917	 21,148	 69,002	 451,873	 -    
Equity	         -     	         -     	       -     	      -     	         -     	  65,781	   65,781	       -    

Total Liabilities and 
Equity	 345,984	      1,052	    3,770	 10,917	 21,148	 134,783	 517,654	       -    

Interest rate 
sensitivity gap	 (150,626)	   41,549	 62,933	 57,976	 63,463	 ( 75,295)	       -    	       -    
Cumulative interest 
rate sensitivity gap	(150,626)	 (109,077)	 (46,144)	 11,832	 75,295	       -    	       -    	       -    	
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Sensitivity of interest rates as of December 31, 2005

									        Average
	  	  1 - 3	    3 - 6	 6 - 12	   1 - 3	   Over	 Zero-interest		  interest
		    Months   	  Months 	  Months	  Years  	 3 years	 Elements	    Total   	    rate    
								        	   %

ASSETS -
(Thousands of JDs)

Cash and balances 
with Central Banks	 40,999	 -       	 -       	 -       	 -     	 23,671	 64,670	 2.438
Balances at Banks and 
financial institutions	 68,722	 -       	 -       	 -       	 -       	 2,899	 71,621	 2.837
Deposits at Banks and 
financial institutions	 -       	 -       	 -       	 712	 1,170	 -       	 1,882	 3.885
Trading investments	 -       	 -       	 -       	 -       	 -       	 241	 241	 -
Direct credit 
facilities, net	 47,211	 17,913	 42,532	 42,401	 56,071	 -       	 206,128	 7.370
Available for sale 
investments	 -       	 -       	 4,967	 9,767	 16,738	 6,457	 37,929	 4.573
Premises and 
equipment, net	 -     	 -      	 -     	 -     	 -     	 7,472	 7,472	 -
Intangible assets	 -     	 -      	 -     	 -     	 -     	 713	 713	 -
Deferred tax assets	 -     	 -      	 -     	 -     	 -     	 182	 182	 -
Other assets  	        -     	      -     	       -     	      -     	   1,158	 18,790	 19,948

Total Assets	 156,932	 17,913	 47,499	 52,880	 75,137	 60,425	 410,786	

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(Thousands of JDs)

Liabilities -

Banks and financial 
institutions’ deposits	 45,646	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 45,646	 3.109
Customers’ deposits	 194,836	 2,296	 3,841	 2	 741	 42,244	 243,960	 2.219
Margin accounts	 12,345	 -     	 1	 -     	 12,432	 4,774	 29,552	 2.398
Loans and borrowings	 596	 346	 627	 3,763	 4,475	 -      	 9,807	 5.634
Sundry provisions	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 152	 152	 -   
Income tax liabilities	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 4,503	 4,503	 -    
Other liabilities	       -      	      -     	      -      	     -     	      -      	 24,245	   24,245	       -      	

Total Liabilities	 253,423	   2,642	   4,469	   3,765	 17,648	 75,918	 357,865	       -      
Equity	      -       	      -    	      -     	      -     	       -     	 52,921	   52,921	       -      	

Total Liabilities and 
Equity	 253,423	   2,642	   4,469	   3,765	 17,648	 128,839	 410,786	       -      	

Interest rate 
sensitivity gap	 (96,491)	   15,271	 43,030	 49,115	 57,489	 (  68,414)	      -       	      -       	

Cumulative interest 
rate sensitivity gap	 (96,491)	 (81,220)	 (38,190)	 10,925	 68,414	      -       	       -       	      -       	
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(42) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risks are represented by the bank’s inability to provide the finance needed to meet its obligations in due time. To reduce 
these risks, the bank’s management diversifies its financing sources, manages the assets and liabilities accordingly and adjusts its 
time periods while maintaining enough cash and commercial financial papers to meet its obligations. 

Within the framework of the general strategy, the bank achieves a return on its investment by reviewing and managing cash 
liquidity on many levels, including the Treasury Management Department, Financial Control Department and an Assets / Liabilities 
Committee. The process of reviewing cash liquidity includes a thorough analysis of the maturities of assets and liabilities, evaluating 
sources of money that include customers, correspondent banks, subsidiary and Bank’s branches in Jordan. 

The contractual maturity dates for assets are defined on the basis of the remainder period from the date of the balance sheet until 
the date of the contractual maturity without taking into consideration the actual maturities reflected by historical facts to maintain 
deposits and liquidity. 

The maturity profile of the assets and liabilities at December 31, 2006 is as follows:

		 Up to	 1 to 3	 3 to 6	 6 months to		  over 3	 no specific		
		 1 month	 months	 Months	 1 year	 1 to 3 years	 years	 maturity	 Total

ASSETS
(Thousands of JDs)

Cash and Balances
with central Banks	 28,558	 6,000	 14,999	 -	 -	 -	 -	 49,557
Balances at Banks and 
financial institutions	 103,288	 19,276	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 122,564
Deposits at Banks and
financial institutions	 -	 -	 -	 -	 106	 1,064	 -	 1,170
Trading investments	 140	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 140
Direct credit 
facilities, net	 27,424	 24,551	 55,500	 26,291	 42,870	 61,474	 -	 238,110
Available for sale
investments	 15,660	 1,983	 2,960	 9,554	 25,917	 22,073	 -	 78,147
Held to maturity, net	 1,995	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,995
Premises and 
equipment, net	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 9,759	 9,759
Intangible assets	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,072	 1,072
Deferred tax assets	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 67	 -	 67
Other assets	 8,299	 1,727	 -	 328	 -	 4,719	 -	 15,073

Total assets	 185,364	 53,537	 73,459	 36,173	 68,893	 89,397	 10,831	 517,654

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(Thousands of JDs)

Liabilities -

Banks and financial
institutions’ deposits	 83,400	 14,180	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 97,580
Customers’ deposits	 233,172	 4,108	 1,331	 11,958	 349	 570	 -	 251,488
Margin accounts	 13,584	 3	 -	 54	 409	 16,131	 -	 30,181
Loans and borrowings	 41,278	 417	 189	 606	 10,508	 4,448	 -	 57,446
Sundry provisions	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 123	 123
Income tax provision	 3,979	 -	 -	 986	 -	 -	 -	 4,965
Other liabilities	 6,650	 1,398	 27	 1,133	 -	 882	 -	 10,090

Total Liabilities 	 382,063	 20,106	 1,547	 14,737	 11,266	 22,031	 123	 451,873
Equity	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 65,781	 65,781

Total Liabilities and
Equity	 382,063	 20,106	 1,547	 14,737	 11,266	 22,031	 65,904	 517,654

Liquidity risk	 (196,699)	 33,431	 71,912	 21,436	 57,627	 67,366	 (55,073)	 -

Cumulative liquidity
risk sensitivity gap	 (196,699)	 (163,268)	 (91,356)	 (69,920)	 (12,293)	 55,073	 -	 -
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The maturity profile of the assets and liabilities at December 31, 2005  is as follows:

		 Up to	 1 to 3	 3 to 6	 6 months to		  over 3	 no specific		
		 1 month	 months	 Months	 1 year	 1 to 3 years	 years	 maturity	 Total

ASSETS
(Thousands of JDs)

Cash and Balances
with central Banks	 49,671	 14,999	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 64,670
Balances at Banks and 
financial institutions	 71,621	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 71,621
Deposits at Banks and
financial institutions	 -	 -	 -	 -	 712	 1,170	 -	 1,882
Trading investments	 241	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 241
Direct credit 
facilities, net	 32,559	 14,650	 17,913	 42,532	 42,401	 56,073	 -	 206,128
Available for sale
investments	 6,457	 -	 -	 4,967	 9,767	 16,738	 -	 37,929
Premises and 
equipment, net	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 7,472	 7,472
Intangible assets	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 713	 713
Deferred tax assets	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 182	 -	 182
Other assets	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 19,948	 -	 19,948

Total assets	 160,549	 29,649	 17,913	 47,499	 52,880	 94,111	 8,185	 410,786

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(Thousands of JDs)

Liabilities -

Banks and financial
institutions’ deposits	 42,101	 3,545	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 45,646
Customers’ deposits	 223,655	 13,426	 2,296	 3,841	 2	 740	 -	 243,960
Margin accounts	 12,334	 12	 -	 1	 -	 17,205	 -	 29,552
Loans and borrowings	 63	 533	 346	 627	 3,763	 4,475	 -	 9,807
Sundry provisions	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 152	 -	 152
Income tax provision	 4,180	 -	 -	 -	 323	 -	 -	 4,503
Other liabilities	 5,615	 -	 -	 -	 18,630	 -	 -	 24,245

Total Liabilities 	 287,948	 17,516	 2,642	 4,469	 22,718	 22,572	 -	 357,865
Equity	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 52,921	 52,921

Total Liabilities and
Equity	 287,948	 17,516	 2,642	 4,469	 22,718	 22,572	 52,921	 410,786

Liquidity risk	 (127,399)	 12,133	 15,271	 43,030	 30,162	 71,539	 (44,736)	 -

Cumulative liquidity
risk sensitivity gap	 (127,399)	 (115,266)	 (99,995)	 (56,965)	 (26,803)	 44,736	 -	 -
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(43) Foreign Currency risks

Foreign currency risks are risks associated with change in the value of financial instruments as a result of a change in foreign 
currency prices. The Treasury Department trades in foreign currencies on behalf of the bank according to the internal policies approved 
by the Bank’s Board of Directors, which defines ceilings of long and short open positions. This is monitored daily through the Treasury 
Operations Department, in addition, the investment policy regarding the bank’s assets in foreign currencies which defines the 
investment ceilings in the money market, the direct facilities in foreign currencies in the Kingdom and the investment in the capital 
market. The Treasury Department is responsible for investment in the money market within the limits mentioned in this policy. The 
Assets and Liabilities Committee assumes the task of approving investment in the capital market. The Financial Control Department 
supplies the Treasury Department with daily detailed reports on the bank’s investment in foreign currencies, provides the Central Bank 
with monthly detailed statements of these investments, and instantly informs the Board of Directors and the Central Bank of Jordan 
about any case that exceeds the ceilings as defined by the bank’s policy and the Central Bank of Jordan’s instructions. 

The Bank had the following significant net exposures denominated in foreign currencies as of December 31:

Currency                                                                                              2006                                                                      2005
	                                                                                                                 JD                                                                           JD
			  Amount in			   Amount in		
			  foreign		  Equivalent	 foreign	 Equivalent
			  currency		  in JD	 currency	 in JD

US Dollar		  222,262	 	 157,584	 (12,767,487)	 (9,052,148)
Sterling Pound		  (8,264)	 	 (11,483)	 8,103	 9,902
Euro		  245,336	 	 228,682	 8,982	 7,551
Swiss Franc		  3,748	 	 2,180	 6,785	 3,660
Japanese Yen		  19,892	 	 119	 28,173	 170
Others		  -	 	 23,298	 -	 27,177

(44) Equity Price Risk

Share price risks result from a change in the fair value of the investment in shares. The bank manages these risks by diversifying 
the investments and investing in several economic sectors. The bank’s investment policy also states that total bank investment in 
the local and foreign shares should not exceed 50% of the bank’s paid in capital. The Treasury Operations Department (independent 
body separated from the Treasury Department) monitors investment ceilings and informs the Assets and Liabilities Committee if they 
were exceeded. 

(45) Segmental Information

Primary segment information

For management purposes the Bank is organized into three major business segments:
Retail banking - Principally handling individual customers’ deposits, and providing housing type loans, overdrafts, credit cards 

facilities and funds transfer facilities;
Corporate banking - Principally handling loans and other credit facilities and deposit and current accounts for corporate and 

institutional customers;
Treasury - Principally providing money market, trading and treasury services, as well as the management of the Bank’s funding 

operations by use of treasury bills, government securities and placements and acceptances with other Banks, through treasury and 
wholesale banking.
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These segments are the basis on which the bank reports its primary segment information. (Thousands of JDs)     

	    		  Retail	 Corporate			                              Total   	
	  		  Banking  	      Banking    	    Treasury   	     Other    	     2006     	     2005     

Gross income		  8,747	 12,408	 20,130	 1,045	 42,330	 35,350
Provision for credit losses		  205	 2,009	 -      	 -     	 2,214	 3,843
Segment result		  7,881	 8,965	 11,031	 1,045	 28,922	 30,818
Unallocated costs		  -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 (12,970)	 (14,291)
Profit before tax		  -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 15,952	 16,527
Income tax expense		  -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 (4,961)	 (4,666)
Profit for the year		  -     	 -     	 -     	 -     	 10,991	 11,861

Other Information

Segment assets		  82,812	 124,442	 293,070	 -      	 500,324	 392,565
Assets not allocated		        -      	       -      	       -      	 17,330	   17,330	   18,221

Total Assets		  82,812	 124,442	 293,070	 17,330	 517,654	 410,786

Segment liabilities		  193,524	 102,145	 146,998	 -     	 442,667	 343,294
Liabilities not allocated	  	      -      	       -      	       -      	 74,987	    74,987	   67,492

Total Liabilities		  193,524	 102,145	 146,998	 74,987	 517,654	 410,786

Capital expenditure		  -      	 -      	 -      	 -    	 4,044	 834
Depreciation		  -      	 -      	 -      	 -    	 1,109	 1,000

Geographical Information 

The following table shows the distribution of the Bank’s operating income and capital expenditure by geographical segment: 
(Thousands of JDs)

	                                                                                                        Jordan                	                  Outside Jordan         	                      Total                   
		     	    2006      	     2005      	        2006      	     2005      	        2006      	     2005      

Gross profit		  37,549	 32,797	 4,781	 2,553	 42,330	 35,350
Total assets		  399,979	 337,240	 117,675	 73,546	 517,654	 410,786
Capital expenditure		  3,973	 834	 71	 -     	 4,044	 834
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(46) Capital Adequacy

The capital adequacy ratio is computed in accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan regulations derived from Basel Committee 
resolutions.  

	                                                                                                                 2006               	                                                    2005           	
					    % to assets		  % to assets
			  Amount in		 weighted by	 Amount in	 weighted by
	      	  	 JD,000      		  risks    	        JD,000       	 risks
Regulatory capital		  62,232	 	 19.32	 50,698	 20.18
Core (primary) capital		  60,116	 	 18.66	 50,900	 20.26

(47) Fiduciary Assets

The Bank had investment custody accounts amounting to JD 78,298 and JD 382,955 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 
respectively, which is not included in the financial statements.  The asset management fees and commission are recorded in the 
income statement.

(48) Contingent Liability
	
			        2006     	      2005
   
Letters of credit			  49,336,811	 34,980,208
Acceptances			  3,694,143	 4,294,894
Letters Of Guarantee-

Payments			  25,156,481	 9,736,798
Performance			  10,117,685	 10,747,468
Others			  14,491,399	 5,590,989

Irrevocable commitments to extend credit 			  35,074,585	 37,496,953
Forward foreign exchange contract			  12,443,675	 3,846,671
Interest rate swap contracts			  9,926,000	 9,926,000
Others			         362,706	        995,374

				   160,603,485	 117,615,355

(49) Litigation 

In the normal course of business the Bank appears as a defendant in a number of lawsuits amounting to approximately JD 
2,171,069 and JD 2,036,319 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

In the opinion of the Bank’s management and its legal counselor, no material liability will arise as a result of these lawsuits in 
excess of the amounts already provided for amounting to JD 15,500.
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(50)	 New And Amended Standards And Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Effective

Amendments to IAS 1 – Capital Disclosures

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements were issued by the IASB in August 2005.  The amendments are 
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.  When effective, these amendments will require disclosure of information 
enabling evaluation of the company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.  

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures was issued by the IASB in August 2005, becoming effective for periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2007.  The new standard will require additional disclosure of the significance of financial instruments for the 
company’s financial position and performance and information about exposure to risks arising from financial instruments.  

IFRIC Interpretations
During 2006 IFRIC issued the following interpretations:
• IFRIC Interpretation 8 Scope of IFRS 2
• IFRIC Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
• IFRIC Interpretation 11 IFRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions

Management does not expect these amendments and interpretations to have a significant impact on the company’s financial 
statements when implemented.

(51) Reclassifications

Some of 2005 balances were reclassified to correspond with the 2006 presentation. The reclassification has no effect on the profit 
for the year and equity.

Listed below the effect of reclassification on some balance sheet account as of December 31, 2005 that resulted from the 
reclassification of margin accounts as credit facilities:

	                                                                                                                                                       2005                      	
	      				    After 	     Before
					   Restatement	 Restatement	 Amount of Change

Direct facilities				   206,128,306	 185,349,581	 20,778,725
Other assets				   19,948,494	 40,727,219	 (20,778,725)
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Branch			   Geographic location				    Number of employees	 Net book value of 

											           fixed assets JD,000

Head Office 		  Shmeisani, Queen Nour Street		  255			   6,118
& Main Branch		  ABC Building	    
			   P.O.Box 926691, Amman (11190), Jordan
			   Telex: 22258, 21114, 23022 
			   Tel: 5664183/5 , 5621801/7, Fax: 5686291
			   Email: Info@arabbanking.com.jo
			   Email: abc.branch01@arabbanking.com.jo

Bayader Wadi		  Main Street, Bayader Wadi Al Seer		  10			   207
Al Seer Branch		  P.O.Box 140590, Amman (11814), Jordan
   			   Tel: 5861392/1, 5823851, Fax:5826795
			   Email: abc.branch04@arabbanking.com.jo

Wadi Saqra Branch		 Arar Street, Wadi Saqra			   7			    270 
			   P.O.Box 183072, Amman, (11118) Jordan
			   Tel: 4613281/3, Fax:4613282
			   Email: abc.branch02@arabbanking.com.jo

Al Wehdat Branch		  Al Muthanna Bin Harithah Str.		  8			   166 
			   P.O.Box 621342, Al Wehdat
			   Amman (11162), Jordan
			   Tel: 4756240, 4788687, 4789397, Fax: 4756241
			   Email: abc.branch07@arabbanking.com.jo

Tla’a Al Ali Branch		  Wasfi Al Tal Street, Bahjat Gardens Center	 10			    22 
			   P.O.Box 766, Amman (11953), Jordan
			   Tel: 5688742, 5688328, Fax: 5696342
			   Email: abc.branch11@arabbanking.com.jo

Al Sweifieh Branch		 Subhi Al Omari Street,			   7			   35
			   P.O.Box 851737, Amman (11185), Jordan
			   Tel: 5858102/4, Fax:5858107
			   Email: abc.branch09@arabbanking.com.jo

Irbid Branch		  Wasfi Al Tal Street, Irbid			   9			   33   
			   P.O.Box3269, Irbid (21110), Jordan 
   			   Tel:(02)7247815/6, Fax:(02)7248940 
			   Email: abc.branch08@arabbanking.com.jo   

Shmeisani Branch		  Matalqa Center Building, 11th August str.	 9			   173
			   P.O.Box926691, Amman (11190), Jordan
  			   Tel: 5696084, 5689511, Fax:5688571
			   Email: abc.branch15@arabbanking.com.jo

Branches of Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) 
& Arab Cooperation Financial Investments Co., Ltd.
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Branches of Arab Banking Corporation (Jordan) 
& Arab Cooperation Financial Investments Co., Ltd.

Branch			   Geographic location				    Number of employees	 Net book value of 

											           fixed assets JD,000

 Zarqa Branch		  Abdul Munem Riyad Street			   5			   23
			   P.O.Box 3805, Zarqa (13111), Jordan
			   Tel: (05)3987812, 3987832, 3987790, 
			   Fax:(05)3987785		
			   Email: abc.branch12@arabbanking.com.jo

Jabal Amman Branch	 Ibn Khaldoun Str 				    7			   106
			   Al Raja’a Medical Center, Bldg (2)	
			   P.O.Box 2802, Amman (11181), Jordan
			   Tel: 4610893/5, Fax:4610918
			   Email: abc.branch14@arabbanking.com.jo

Khalda Branch		  New English School circle			   6			   185
			   P.O.Box3811, Amman, 11953 Jordan                             
			   Tel:5542154/6, Fax: 5542153
			   Email: abc.branch3@arabbanking.com.jo

Aqaba Branch		  Al Hammamat Al Tounisieh Street 		  10			   43
			   P.O.Box 514, Aqaba, Jordan
			   Tel: (03)2022792/4, Fax: (03)2022796
			   Email: abc.branch17@arabbanking.com.jo

Arab Cooperation		  Shmeisani, ABC Building, Amman		  51			   2,336 
Financial Investments Co., Ltd.	P.O.Box 930059, Amman (11193), Jordan
(Subsidiary Company)	 Tel: 5629300, Fax: 5629301	
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